& Herefordshire
O Council

Agenda

Licensing sub-committee

Date:  Thursday 7 March 2019

Time: 10.00 am

Place: Committee Room 1, The Shire Hall, St Peter's Square,
Hereford, HR1 2HX

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Caroline Marshall, Democratic Services
Tel: 01432 260249
Email: caroline.marshall3@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format, please call Caroline Marshall, Democratic Services on
01432 260249 or e-mail caroline.marshall3@herefordshire.gov.uk in
advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Licensing sub-

committee
Membership

Councillor DW Greenow
Councillor KS Guthrie
Councillor FM Norman



Herefordshire Council 7 MARCH 2019

Agenda
Pages
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive apologies for absence.

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place
of a Member of the committee.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of interests in respect of Schedule 1, Schedule 2 or
Other Interests from members of the committee in respect of items on the
agenda.

4, APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF | 11-120
'FORGE FILLING STATION, WORMBRIDGE, HEREFORD. HR2 9DH' -
LICENSING ACT 2003

To consider an application for a new premises licence in respect of ‘Forge
Filling Station, Wormbridge, Hereford. HR2 9DH’.

5. APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF 26 | 121 - 152
EIGN GATE, HEREFORD. HR4 0AB - LICENSING ACT 2003

To consider an application for a new premises licence in respect of 26 Eign
Gate, Hereford. HR4 OAB.

6. REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF: MILA, 102-104 | 153 - 174
BELMONT ROAD, HEREFORD, HR2 7JS CALLED BY WEST MERCIA
POLICE - LICENSING ACT 2003

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of:
‘Mila, 102-104 Belmont Road, Hereford, HR2 7JS called by West Mercia
Police.

7. REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF: S&S NEWS, 55 | 175 - 194
BROAD STREET, HEREFORD. HR4 9AB CALLED BY WEST MERCIA
POLICE - LICENSING ACT 2003

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of
S&S News, 55 Broad Street, Hereford. HR4 9AB called by West Mercia
Police.







The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

e Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six
years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a report is
given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents.

RECORDING OF THIS MEETING

[ ]
Please note that the council will be making an official audio recording of this public meeting.
These recordings form part of the public record of the meeting and are made available for
members of the public via the council’s website.

To ensure that recording quality is maintained, could members and any attending members
of the public speak as clearly as possible and keep background noise to a minimum while
recording is in operation.

Please also note that other attendees are permitted to film, photograph and record our public
meetings provided that it does not disrupt the business of the meeting.

If you do not wish to be filmed or photographed, please identify yourself so that anyone who
intends to record the meeting can be made aware.



Please ensure that your mobile phones and other devices are turned to silent during the
meeting.

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the
reporting to ensure that they comply.

Public Transport Links

There are bus stops directly outside the building. Hereford train station is a 15 minute walk,
Hereford country bus station and Hereford city bus station are both a 5 minute walk from the
Shirehall.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

SHIRE HALL, ST PETERS SQUARE, HEREFORD HR1 2HX.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to the Fire Assembly Point which is located
in the Shire Hall Side Car Park. A check will be undertaken to ensure
that those recorded as present have vacated the building following
which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the
exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to
collect coats or other personal belongings.






Licensing Hearing Flowchart

Introduction

Discussion

-

Report by council

Outline of application
Summary of issues

A

Parties address committee using
spokesman if necessary

A
Applicant addresses committee

A

Members of committee can ask
questions

A 4

Cross examination generally not
permitted.

A 4

All parties to have equal maximum
length of time to speak.

A 4

Note: hearing may be adjourned or
heard in party’s absence.







AGENDA ITEM 4

‘O Herefordshire

Council
Meeting: Licensing sub-committee
Meeting date: 7 March 2019
Title of report: Application for a new premises licence in

respect of ‘Forge Filling Station, Wormbridge,
Hereford. HR2 9DH’ - Licensing Act 2003

Report by: Licensing Technical Officer

Classification

Open

Key Decision

This is not an executive decision.

Wards Affected

Wormside

Purpose

To consider an application for a new premises licence in respect of ‘Forge Filling Station,
Wormbridge, Hereford. HR2 9DH'.

Recommendation

THAT:

The sub committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give
appropriate weight to:

The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,

The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties,
The guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003, and

The Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 - 2020.

Options

1.

There are a number of options open to the sub-committee:

a) Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating
schedule accompanying the application and the mandatory conditions set out in
the Licensing Act 2003,

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

11




b) Grant the licence subject to modified conditions to that of the operating schedule
where the sub-committee considers it appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives and add mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act
2003,

c) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which
the application relates

d) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premise supervisor, or

e) To reject the application.

Reasons for Recommendations
2. Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.
Key Considerations

Licence Application

3. The application for a grant of the premises licence has received representation and is
brought before the sub committee for determination.

4. The previous hearing on 21st January 2019 was opened and adjourned to enable
committee members to do a site visit. The site visit was carried out on 14t February
2019.

5. The details of the application are:
Applicant Karl Hawkins

Forge Filling Station, Wormbridge, Hereford. HR2 9DH

Solicitor Not applicable
Type of Date received: 28 Days consultation ended
application:

27 November 2018 24 December 2018
New

6. Summary of Application

The application (appendix 1) requests a new premises licence to allow the following
licensable activities, during the hours shown as follows:

Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption off the premises)
Monday — Saturday 08:00 — 21:30
Sunday 10:00 — 21:30

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

12



10.

11.

12.

Summary of Representations

Two (2) representations have been received from the responsible authorities (local
authority and trading standards).

The local authority has objected (appendix 2) to the licence.

Trading standards have made representations that have not been agreed by the
applicant (appendix 3).

Goods vs Fuel sales from May 2018 — November 2018 has been submitted by the
applicant (appendix 4) along with a petition of support (appendix 5).

Further information was received from the applicant (appendix 6) which includes
photos of the premises, details of court hearings and licensing law.

Further information has been received from the Local Authority (appendix 7). These
are Goods vs Fuel receipts which is the basis of their objection.

Community Impact

13. Any decision is unlikely to have any impact on the local community.

Equality duty

14. There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report.

15. This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and
the residents from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of
this report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood
and/or may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close
proximity to the premises.

16. Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has

the right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes
business premises). This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol —
Article 1 — also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest
and conditions provided for by law. Members must accordingly make a decision
which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the
rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole.

Financial implications

17.

There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time.

Legal Implications

18.

As relevant representations have been received, the sub committee must determine
the application under Section 3.5.7 (c) of the Herefordshire Council constitution. The
representations must relate to the licensing objectives and the sub committee must
determine the likely effect of the grant of the premises licences on the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

13



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing
objectives namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention
of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions
under the Licensing Act 2003. Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance
under Section 182 of the Act and the Council’'s own statement of licensing policy. The
options available to the licensing authority are set out in section 1 of this report.

The sub committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have
appeared before the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority.

The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No:
CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative
Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the
Honourable Mrs Justice Black.

In this case it was summed up that: -

A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State
under section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do
so but will need to give full reasons for their actions.

Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to
a licence with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’
must be presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions.

This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of
Bristol Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice
Queen's Bench Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC
625 (Admin) 2009 WL 648859 in which it was said:

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and
proportionate for the promotion for licensing objectives’.

In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an
enforceable condition.

The committee should also be aware of the stated case of R (on application of Murco
Petroleum Ltd) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin). In this case it was
summed up that:

Responsible Authorities should be encouraged by this case to ask applicants to
provide further information they believe will help them understand the application
more fully. If that information is not provided by the applicant, Responsible Authorities
can make representations to committees who have the power to require the request
is met.

Mr Justice Cranston said:

The sub-committee [has the power] to ask a question of a party, where the question is
calculated to elicit an answer which will facilitate the function of considering and
adjudicating upon the relevant question

Right of Appeal

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

14



26. Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal which states:
Decision to grant premises licence or impose conditions efc.

2 (1) This paragraph applies where a licensing authority grants a premises licence
under section 18.
(2) The holder of the licence may appeal against any decision—
(a) to impose conditions on the licence under subsection (2)(a) or (3)(b)
of that section, or
(b) to take any step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section
(exclusion of licensable activity or refusal to specify person as
premises supervisor).
(3) Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the
application desires to contend—
(a) that the licence ought not to have been granted, or
(b) that, on granting the licence, the licensing authority ought to have
imposed different or additional conditions, or to have taken a step
mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section,
he may appeal against the decision.
(4) In sub-paragraph (3) “relevant representations” has the meaning given in
section 18(6).

27. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court and must be made within 21 days
beginning with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of
the decision appealed against

Risk Management

28. There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21days of being notified of
the decision in writing.

Consultees

28. All responsible authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Application Form

Appendix 2 - Local Authority Objection

Appendix 3 - Trading Standards Representation
Appendix 4 - Goods vs Fuel Sales

Appendix 5 - Petition of Support

Appendix 6 — Information from the Applicant
Appendix 7 — Information from the Licensing Authority

Background Papers

None.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

15






Appendix 1

Herefordshire ] For help contact
v Herefordshire Application for a premises licence licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
= Council Licensing Act 2003 Telephone: 01432 261761

* required informatiol

Form errors

Some data entered into this form is invalid. Please resolve before continuing.

Section 1 of 21

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

This is the unique reference for this
System reference Not Currently In Use application generated by the system.

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Your reference Forge Alcohol Licence

Put "no" if you are applying on your own

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or

C  Yes (¢ No work for.
Applicant Details
* First name Karl l
* Family name Hawkins l
* E-mail Forgefillingstation@gmail.com

Other telephone number

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:
(¢ Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
(" Applying as an individual Applying as an individual means you are

applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Applicant Business

Is your business registered in (¢ Yes " No Note: completing the Applicant Business
the UK with Companies section is optional in this form.

House?

Registration number 11240633

. - ) If your business is registered, use its
Business name Forge Filling Station registered name.

VAT ftifibar GB 291226116 Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

17




Continued from previous page...

Legal status Private Limited Company

Your position in the business |Director

: : The country where the headquarters of your
Home country United Kingdom husiness s located.

Registered Address Address registered with Companies House.

Building number or name
Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country

Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

(¢ Address ('  OS map reference (" Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name !Forge Filling Station

Street |Wormbridge

District |Hereford

City or town !Hereford |
County or administrative area | J
Postcode HR2 9DH J

Country United Kingdom J

Further Details

Telephone number 07813948688

18



Non-domestic rateable
" value of premises (£) 8,400 J

Section 3 of 21
APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

An individual or individuals

A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

A recognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

O OoOoooOodgdgd

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

[

[] The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Confirm The Following

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
the use of the premises for licensable activities

[] 1am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

0 | am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 21
INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS

Applicant Name

Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one? If "Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
(e Yes C No Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.
First name l@rl J
Family name Hawkins I

19



Continued from previous page...

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?

(¢ Yes C No
Current Residential Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one? If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
(e Yes " No required. Select "No” to enter a completely

new set of details.

Building number or name
Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country

Applicant Contact Details

Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?  If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
¢ Yes C No required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

E-mail

Telephone number

Other telephone number

# Date of birth

IF

* Nationali Welsh Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
ationality e work in the UK

Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the
premises licence to start? 01 ’/| [ |/r2018 |
dd mm yyyy

If you wish the licence to be

valid only for a limited period, I / | / l

h
when do you want it to end Yy

Provide a general description of the premises

20



Continued from previous page...

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the

premises.

Rural Petrol Station serving fuel and groceries, animal feeds, livestock feeds, coal, etc. Established for almost 50 years with
the business hours of 6.30 am until 9.30 pm. Alcohol will only be sold on an off-licence basis,but still be part of the petrol

station shop and goods stored in the same area.

If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the
premises at any one time, F)
state the number expected to
attend

Section 6 of 21
PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing plays?
C Yes (¢ No

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing films?
C Yes (@ No

Section 8 of 21
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

C Yes (@ No

Section 9 of 21
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

C Yes @ No

Section 10 of 21
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing live music?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 11 of 21
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

21




Continued from previous page...

“Will you be providing recorded music?

C Yes

(¢ No

Section 12 of 21

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

C Yes

(@ No

Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF

DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or

performances of dance?

C Yes

No

D)

Section 14 of 21

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?

C Yes

@ No

Section 15 of 21

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

(e Yes

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

Start

C No

08:00

08:00

08:00

o LE LB L

08:00

End

End

End

End

End

End

End

End

21:30

21:30

21:30

21:30

LiRLRIin;

Give timings in 24 hour clock.

(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

22



Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY
SATURDAY

stat [ ]
SUNDAY

Start

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:

(" On the premises (¢ Off the premises

State any seasonal variations

End |21:30

End

End (21:30

End

End (21:30

End

LU

 Both

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

none

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the

column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

none

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the

licence as premises supervisor

Name
First name Karl
Family name Hawkins

23




Continued from previous page...

" Enter the contact's address
Building number or name
Street
District
City or town
County or administrative are
Postcode

Country

Personal Licence number
(if known)

Issuing licensing authority
(if known)

[Trofaen

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

(¢ Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

(C Asan attachment to this application

If the consent form is already submitted, ask
the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference’ or 'your
reference’.

Refergnce number for consent forgesupervisor2018
form (if known)

Section 16 of 21

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

none
Section 17 of 21 ‘
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC g
Standard Days And Timings J

24




Continued from previous page...

MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start |06:30 End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
stan [ nd [ robevsedtorthesciity.

TUESDAY
Start End
Start End I

WEDNESDAY
Start End
Start End I_—_—__l

THURSDAY
Start [06:30 End
stat [ ] End

FRIDAY
Start End [2130
stat [ ] end [ ]

SATURDAY
Start [06:30 End
Start End I:

SUNDAY
Start [06:30 End
Start End

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

none

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

none

25



Continued from previous page...
"Section 18 of 21
LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

Strong management controls and effective training of all staff so that they are aware of the premises licence and the
requirements to meet the four licensing objectives with particular attention to:

a/ no selling of alcohol to underage people

b/ no drunk and disorderly behavior on the premises area

¢/ vigilance in preventing the use and sale of illegal drugs at the retail area

d/ no violent and anti-social behaviour

e/ no any harm to children

- Operating Schedule providing the hours of operation and licensable activities during those hours.

- Designated premises supervisor confirmed it is obligated to be in day-to-day control of the premises, to provide good
training for staff on the Licensing Act (Training Record), to make or authorize each sale

- Clear "Challenge 25" information to prevent the supply of alcohol to under-age drinkers.

- CCTV system installed with recording option available

- Roller metal exterior window shutter will be fixed to ensure that shop front is safe and secure at all times

As a licensed premises we know that it is necessary to carry out our functions or operate their businesses with a purpose of
promoting these objectives. We promise to support these objectives through their operating schedules and other measures
(including staff training and qualifications, policies, and strategic partnerships with other agencies).

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

CCTV System installed to monitor entrances, exits, and other parts of the premises in order to address the prevention of

crime objective.

A clear and legible notice outside the premises indicating the normal hours under the terms of the premises licence during
which licensable activities are permitted.

Clear and conspicuous notices warning of potential criminal activity, such as theft, that may target customers will be
displayed.

Not selling of alcohol to drunk or intoxicated customers.

Custom will not be sought by means of personal solicitation outside or in the vicinity of the premises.

Prevention and vigilance in illegal drug use at the retail unit area.

Staff will be well trained in asking customers to use premises in an orderly and respectful manner and prevent drinking
alcohol at the retail unit (ex. canned or bottled beer).

¢) Public

c) Public safety

Internal and external lighting fixed to promote the public safety objective.
Well trained staff adherence to environmental health requirements.

Training and implementation of underage ID checks.

A log book or recording system shall be kept upon the premises in which shall be entered particulars of inspections made;
those required to be made by statute, and information compiled to comply with any public safety condition attached to the
premises licence that requires the recording of such information. The log book shall be kept available for inspection when
required by persons authorised by the Licensing Act 2003 or associated legislation.

All parts of the premises and all fittings and apparatus therein, door fastenings and notices, lighting, heating, electrical, air
condition, sanitary accommodation and other installations, will be maintained at all times in good order and in a safe

condition.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Noise reduction measures to address the public nuisance objective.
Prominent. clear and leaible notices will be disblaved at the exit reauestina the public to respect the needs of nearbv

26




Continued from previous page...

[residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly.

Deliveries of goods necessary for the operation of the business will be carried out at such a time or in such a manner as to
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

prevent nuisance and disturbance to nearby residents.

The Licensee will ensure that staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night (ex. for unpacking, pricing newly
delivered goods) when the business has ceased trading conduct themselves in such a manner to avoid causing disturbance
to nearby residents.

Customers will be asked not to stand around loudly talking in the street outside the premises.

Customers will not be admitted to premises above opening hours.

The movement of bins and rubbish outside the premises will be kept to a minimum after 11.00pm. This will help to reduce
the levels of noise produced by the premises.

Any lighting on or outside the premises will be positioned and screened in such a way so as to not cause a disturbance to
nearby residents.

Adequate waste receptacles for use by customers will be provided in the local vicinity.

e) The protection of children from harm

"Challenge 25" sign which is a retailing strategy that encourages anyone who is over 18 but looks under 25 to carry
acceptable ID (a card bearing the PASS hologram, a photographic driving license or a passport) if they wish to buy alcohol.
Well trained staff about requirement for persons' identification, age establishment etc.

All the details provided in Training Record Book available the retail unit.

Log Book will be kept upon the premises all the time.

Nothing belong existing Health & Safety requirements

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

27



Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable

activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see

note below about which sections of the passport to copyl.

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s
parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a

Government agency or a previous employer.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on ofa

licensable activity.

28



Continued from previous page...
° A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

o A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

o A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder

with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

° A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A
(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

o Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or |
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

o Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

evidence of the applicant’s own identity - such as a passport,
° evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member - e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
° evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
() working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, 52 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:-
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(i) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

29



Continued from previous page...

in terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.
Films: no licence is required for ‘'not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.
Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.
Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (i) the school or (jii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

30



Continued from previous page...

° Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

o Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:

o) any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

Section 21 of 21
PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises.

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00

Band C-£33001 to £87000 £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00%

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*

*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then you are required to pay a higher fee.

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00

Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.

Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.

If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time.
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00

Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00

Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00

Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00

Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00

Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00

Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00

Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00

Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00

Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00
ATTACHMENTS

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS

31




Continued from previous page...

Address

Building number or name I

Street |

District

City or town ’

County or administrative area |

Postcode I

Country ’United Kingdom

DECLARATION

. |/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

You must check the box for this declaration

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] |
understand | am not entitled to be issued with a licence if | do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if |
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my
licence will become invalid if | cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

*

You must check the box for this declaration
The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or
* her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and | have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if

appropriate (please see note 15)

Q/T’icking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name

* Capacity

Date (dd/mm/yyyy)

r Add another signatory I

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Go backto https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/herefordshire/apply-1 to upload this file and
continue with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

32



Continued from previous page...

IT1S AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE

IS DISQUALIFIED

33




.. Herefordshire
C) Council

Form of consent given by the person whom the applicant wishes to be the
premises supervisor

I, Karl Hawkins.[insert first names and surname of prospective premises supervisor|
hereby consents to being named as the premises supervisor in a new licence granted
under paragraph 4 of Schedule 8 to the Licensing Act 2003 to

Karl Hawkins.[insert full name of applicant] where the holder of the licence has
consented to the application being made by the applicant for Forge Filling Station,
Wormbridge, Hereford, HR2 9DH. [Insert name and address of the proposed licensed

premises] if that application is successful.

Dated 28.09.18

ELI PREM 4 Issue 1 11/07

34



4700

| Shop Floor

Storage

0. ORI

TSR
N

Storage

%
2
Vi

Main
Entrance

Floor Plan
1:100 Scale

s |icensable Activity

msssssmm  Solid internal wall

) Fire

1No Powder
1No Foam
1No Fire Bucket

35

GriffithsDesign

Architectural Technologists.

Tel: 07969446621
Email: griffithsdesign@outlook.com

Client Mr K. Hawkins

Project Forge Filling Station,
Wormbridge,
Herefordshire,

HR2 9DH

Drawing Floor Plan for Premises Licence

Date  otober2018 | o0 1:100 @ A4
Drawn by JG Drawing No

Checked by | ***

Revision I | l | I I I | [B D] 01 "







Representation made by the Local Authority 20" December 2018

I am an officer authorised under the Licensing Act 2003.

Appendix 2

| refer to the application made for a new premises licence in respect of ‘Forge Filling Station,

Wormbridge, Hereford, HR2 9DH.

The application applies for the sale of alcohol 0800 hours until 2130 hours daily.

The authority does object in total to the grant of the licence for the sale of alcohol.

This objection is based upon the fact that Section 176 of the 2003 Act prohibits the sale from
premises which are used primarily as a garage, or are part of premises used primarily as a
garage. Premises are used primarily as a garage if they are used for one or more of the

following:

the retailing of petrol;

the retailing of derv;

the sale of motor vehicles,

the maintenance of motor vehicles

The applicant has produced data concerning sales between May & October 2018. It is noted
that on 4" July a new till system was installed.

The authority has taken a number of snap shots of that data which has shown the following:

13/07/18 Diesel Sales 46.97% £1637.97
Unleaded petrol 22.02% £ 769.44
Red diesel 6.38% £ 222.99
Total 75.37% £2630.40
Total Sales £3494.38
Other sales £ 863.98

25/08/18 Diesel Sales 42.84% £1833.85
Unleaded petrol 26.85% £1148.59
Red diesel 12.14% £519.54
Total 81.83% £3501.98
Total Sales £4280.26
Other sales £ 778.28

01/10/18 Diesel Sales 55.25% £2204.02
Unleaded petrol 20.27% £ 808.54
Red diesel 5.53% £ 220.46
Total 81.05% £3244.02
Total Sales £3989.04
Other sales £ 745.02

37



Appendix 2

I make reference to the Section 182 Guidance which at paragraph 5.22 states:

o ltis for the licensing authority to decide, based on the licensing objectives,
whether it is appropriate for that premises to be granted a licence, taking into
account the documents and information listed in section 17(3) and (4) which must
accompany the application.

Based upon the figures provided the primary use of the filling station is that of a garage and
therefore Section 176 applies.

The authority therefore is concerned that based on the information provided that to grant a
premises licence would mean that it aided and abetted the offence of selling alcohol other
than in accordance with a licence, contrary to Section 136 of the act.

Fred Spriggs
Licensing Officer

38



Appendix 3

From: Wilson, Leah
To: "forgefillingstation@gmail.com"
Cc: Licensing
Subject: Premises Licence Application
Date: 17 December 2018 11:35:15
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

Dear Mr Hawkins

As an authorised body under the Licensing Act 2003, Herefordshire Council
Environmental Health and Trading Standards have received details of your
application for a premises licence for Forge Filling Station, Wormbridge, Hereford,
Herefordshire HR2 9DH.

Trading Standards have the responsibility for enforcing the Licensing Act 2003 in
respect of sales of alcohol to anyone under the age of eighteen.

After looking at your application under the section protection of children from harm
we would seek to include the following conditions on the premises licence in
addition to those already specified on the application:

1. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol
retailing to the minimum standard of BIIAB level 1 or any equivalent training
course within 1 month of commencing employment at the premises. Where
there are existing staff this training shall be completed within 3 months of
the date that this condition first appears on the licence. No person shall be
authorised to sell or supply alcohol until this training is completed.
Refresher training will be conducted at 12 monthly intervals. Training
records shall be kept on the premises and produced to the police or an
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or
an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on
demand.

2. A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a
description of the people who have been unable to provide required
identification to prove their age. Such records shall be kept for a period of
12 months. It will be collected and reviewed on a weekly basis by the
Designated Premises Supervisor and produced to the police or an
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or
an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on
demand.

3. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be
written down and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on
demand of the Police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of
the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of
Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less
than 32 font bold) shall also be displayed at all entrances to the premises
as well as at, at least one location behind any sale area advertising the
scheme operated.

39


mailto:/O=HUA/OU=LEOMINSTER/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=LWILSON
mailto:forgefillingstation@gmail.com
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk

HerefOrdshire.gov.uk
















If you agree to these conditions could you email me stating you agree and copy the

email to licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk; or

If you wish to discuss this matter further please do not hesitate to contact me on 01432

260163, lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk

Kind regards

Image
Leah Wilson
Trading Standards Officer 8 St Owens Street
Environmental Health and Trading Standards Hereford
Economy, Communities and Corporate HR12PJ

Directorate

Hereford Council

01432 260163
lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk

lwilson@herefordshire.gcsx.gov.uk

Please consider the environment - Do you really need to print this E-Mail?

Any opinion expressed in this e-mail or any attached files are those of the individual and not necessarily those of Herefordshire Council.
This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the addressee. This communication may
contain material protected by law from being passed on. If you are not the intended recipient and have received this e-mail in error, you
are advised that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-

mail in error, please contact the sender immediately and destroy all copies of it.

40


https://www.facebook.com/hfdscouncil
https://twitter.com/hfdscouncil
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk
file:///Local/Temp/Temp2_Email_template.zip/www.herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:lwilson@herefordshire.gcsx.gov.uk

‘Q\\ﬂﬁ' Sales OP‘ G‘C’C‘)Cié \/‘S \:—mf,\ Appendix 4

November October September August
Goods fuel Goods Fuel Goods Fuel Goods Fue
364 82 359 82 360 72 453 97
388 90 363 57 468 99 461 83
402 64 373 85 464 102 357 82
357 70 393 61 367 94 380 81
314 67 451 93 416 83 386 85
322 64 352 75 407 83 318 60
374 74 469 94 375 104 333 109
390 102 361 96 277 78 411 79
450 77 395 75 357 109 435 82
416 82 364 83 352 106 326 77
326 96 332 70 386 82 473 82
413 70 304 89 320 94 404 102
447 88 346 92 356 76 387 74
357 71 448 85 356 93 356 103
381 81 306 78 415 94 447 101
342 65 355 81 381 108 404 95
327 78 334 64 466 97 412 98
340 76 280 62 452 120 416 97
346 62 305 78 329 102 393 92
417 79 390 66 337 89 347 60
396 74 378 79 322 87 386 66
305 74 311 69 298 52 407 95
322 70 383 79 336 83 417 80
340 92 405 67 384 88 338 88
293 71 324 58 371 83 324 87
430 73 384 73 342 77 374 89
386 84 426 79 336 76 388 65
801 157 461 83 377 96 326 82
402 88 412 70 414 90
341 85 324 71 495 88
november october september 333 74
goods fuel goods fuel goods fuel goods augt fuel
10746 2233 11095 2326 11143 2668 12101 2643
goods total fuel total
78361 17357

_—_—————'—’—_\
Uoni- Yovals

$ W Ny o .
g Url 72018
SUVRL LU

41



July June May

Goods Fuel Goods Fuel Goods Fuel
372 103 297 85 355 64
342 64 389 96 326 76
322 50 395 80 375 79
774 172 347 86 290 67
445 92 438 70 278 59
457 87 338 87 381 92
406 94 431 97 338 75
337 74 452 87 413 82
358 67 388 98 301 71
416 69 360 81 315 61
319 74 299 75 300 53
410 89 330 74 409 87
415 74 258 82 317 91
395 78 387 61 338 89
314 80 355 91 414 80
405 92 330 89 269 67
445 85 305 77 332 92
394 96 304 86 377 71
381 85 295 83 397 87
414 83 411 87 374 101
347 82 435 104 336 89
423 95 430 88 385 76
388 76 284 88 292 77
344 83 358 77 347 79
365 98 265 67 417 73
452 108 268 69 368 77
784 198 330 56 330 95
367 93 371 61 290 90
473 76 361 89 409 77

378 93 292 63

july june 258 66
goods fuel goods fuel may goods fuel

12064 2617 10589 2464 10623 2406

42



yeck Group Parish Council

Email Parishclerkmw(@btinternet.com
www.kilpeckgpe.org

12 February 2019

Mr Karl Hawkins

Forge Store / Filling Station
Wormbridge

Hereford

HR2 9DH

Dear Mr. Hawkins,

Kilpeck Group Parish Council discussed at their
meeting held on the 11" February 2019 your application for an alcohol licence for the
store.

Consideration was given in particular to the various options available for the
purchase of wines and spirits locally, the Parish Council resolved unanimously to
support your application which would be a welcome addition to this rural community.

Malcolm Walker
Clerk to Kilpeck Group Parish Council

Kilpeck Group Parish Council serving the Local Community

43




/’ %(1 \ UV \C/gg—(/uﬁé/y

Petltlon for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME

23//’/(‘] :Qgp:@\A
5| (T )M ’,Ym/vuup?
25 |\ |4 EM \MS

2é// (1|1 PR o527
&‘) [-1a | M. Sheckam
05\~ | U o
Wiy | Qlpd\
025/'/ 19 // y(/f/axm'/ond .

2 5[ 119 B Bo rebelti

DS Ol 19 | Els e cOo mNEO

25 con . iF | 2. SewirogE

A WS APHAE T oneg
o ® V‘f !V&S“ﬂ/&kg
NS RANIVEN
W s
251 19|2.6 MAILES
2.5=[-19] K Srxiti
75-1-14 [y LonMine,
25 19| NElC (cona

44



Peere 2

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local

petrol station
would benefit

and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol

beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE

NAME

$-1-/

¢ -

ST v/ Lenild

Qa/ ﬂq

. Clive

Ab/ y / 79| e 122
A
U~ -1q | ¢ ===
261141, | S Hetpas
245014, | Flve—.

98-t - 1Y %Z/(Q

25 1 1y v
J\?ﬁ/fﬁ 47(//// %

LS et fﬂ%AX}L'
QS -19 | DB/
25-1-19 | S MNor gan
95-1-19 @AﬁCﬂqb»~L\
95 -1-1d | B ferens
IS5\ A 5=~ AL N
26 (119 S
fz§)|hq PAND Yoo

45



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

2¢/1/19 | Bokony (Loglon
2571/ 19 | Koiome M s
‘25/‘// Jea | 7SeSK bt
2f- / [ C{ Jﬂ I J:‘m VS
z@ 19 (AR feeee
}°;[ ( /\ /QLM(&@ &MZ/
251/ G | LoBELT HE e
Qf/l/fq (o Srgreetrn
75112019 | Donich Tecs
15101 (2514 | \atblew Jooden

Z§/o/ // Ered ,/76{./49 ,

95/0/ /90] MW&MM ﬁ’?w

25/orl 0 el Dnag s
%o /19 4 ;QW

15/0\/ g | A L\

o M Chdle

i Wl FLECHEe

STt (19 | O ONES

46



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

21| | Mhertes

V61 19 /Q/ﬁqw.ﬂ .

aslilia | [\ Cen

2611 L4 Tames Stz

20[1] (4. | Bix CQuuaw
L6/U[19 | Jack Grolim

2]t T2 S e

%/ /r7 o

Xé/r/ »f/l -

&b!/
ee] 19 O AUAAYE
2/t WAl
26014 |4 P MNaise
HIERPAWY
2 6[ 12 \/ww
1) 19 (AT
26! /L? %u//d(.(,s,n
260119 |A  wooo4TT
Zé/qn7 %ﬁﬂwﬁe»

47



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

Mo 19| fE A’
2 A sammdle. Mt o\
I [ (A Eoverd io/{/to
2o LT SO\SL&E\)@\&S&QQ

(19 | v () e
26114 |§200uMGrg e
2L/ L9 Chean \,Do.gef\

26/1 /19 | TaniNe Wi rre
Mo Vo1 QU \J Ve
%(é/( /160 | Mietiosd (‘MJ by
ol 1719 UL Y
wloim | A OAaES

26 /ot .| . Chonallor
O ¢ /’0//7/%/é/a%ﬂ’)
7
200110 (M _Mbacligzn.
/I 1o W e,
26//! ‘ L&@)Lo@c\)

”6//'@ s i

Joi[1& [MATT DAVIES

48



‘)DCLC/( @ '6u

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local

petrol station

and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which

would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
‘16)1f\f{ DIYD s CLARKL
ST WJ Wy os
o/ 11/157, @EKEIL Dacs
o (0o | Aot Lnen
R7-t-devy | c. Ncwaloe,
1F-1220d  GuTeAS

97-1- 1oy }/(Qudu

4 7/ Janal KL bt

271120l | K. Fenns ©

2_7/ 126 | M - Socondors

3\7/ [,2 c 19 Q Q'Jlo.w(%

11\10;9 ® PO wel,)
201/19 | Lisa Hesth
|1 |14 Cltvse Jones

21 s [ WACFSRE e

07.0. 14 A Coole

2% 44 A | Jagge Pulersslso

VU L \\MQ .

020207 S oy

/
Y

49



=L

Tooe A
Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

21 ~1 =~ A M \aiow eon

DV (-1 F | (JAGQQS c\\y

99-1-19 . [Hofé

9 -1-19 [ M‘f)?ﬂﬂdy
29 007 @ W
29 1149 VZ%%

P SIELI N =V
2¢. |- 14 M S@Z/\N
g ([ M Moencet
A
A7 119 b‘a[[l\_ &c@bg/—}qm\y
-\ - q NV ,‘g“/k’“

97 -1 | DM“ W din eon
73119 NEW« @n o
i R ] I AN
1] 13| > e
2= [ Ul

L TR T

27// //7 //%)s Lip/Es

50



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

ADDRESS

DATE NAME
A7 — [ =y f.?/?/‘k oS
28-1.%9 | dean Pide
7% 117 | o

RN 19 ] S\

29(t /19 M Q,W.QM ’
LZ’%/ ' { 'Y 10&6\{] gl LWV\UV\_OQ&
S .19, AIL,!-.»")—#.Q_.A/\
28N\ Hhpe Gloece
2%/ 19[S0 Gade
é}g/(( 19| K @uﬂu&
¥/ 111y ol
??[//ZM D. Toniiry
%lla01q | 4 2 caon
&lilaciqa | T cRecE
Qg/i/&a;‘) L (eech

Z . )oneb

Z&/ WAL D %
Q@’/ (/11 |\ ‘3@4%8‘143
JK’]{ / |4 %}/'g/{fﬁwﬂl\ﬁm\

51



e 9

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
2211 Ay O \ows
2g -1\ & Frawwe Steedfomt
28-- 10 | TTom frenus
28-1-19 | PTANDY
AR =V —\q | Bhadlesy  mp Acgn
2%-1- (4 o Quiue
24 19 /ga/ej/ézémv
2619 | fop, EviAws
25 /1/14 CZ;WA&WM’/
28“/\ /,% Or. sogre o
AJITRE MM%@@QA\
29119 | P asonss

QS?/)/)@«

(s @57

281/

/ff/ar\ J\M Sgn

25/

(g‘cimanzaﬂ Co<

28 / Y& Aaarna Awbgmau
%1 )9 M G
.k/,//q /’A(@ Il b
‘23/\/1 Ilwx a\mwo

52



Taqe (O

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
ZY]: 14 |2esek Hoolin
B /ll @ D sy
/U1 | mihet s e
&[4 | Dart Slator-
99 L. | HasS Sperest
28014 M, /A\ HWUQ\A\J\
U/1/1q |Me G Yollod
”l%( "y L’bk}bﬁ
AL I INY e
2% 0119 D S
2C. 19 | NS
2% | (. Bafte
251 (9 | D Talespsy

" S UMy €
- - €. @AA@LG‘-A
15 |01 14 gwuuuﬂ [0 (ons
Zé’«/v/f/ﬁ' ",

2% -0\AY %\3@&@0&

53



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining

their alcohol licence.

I?ATE NAME ADDRESS
'2%///10( P Quows vo
3@////9. Eole /fﬂffw/e«g
29/ 1140 | B LS
227 Ji5 Aéuﬂ/ﬂ&v%

0% /) I fok
)5 = =47 W/yﬁ%fj&
18‘|f|9’ N/%J%No&ews
2< /‘ ,/IC‘ c \aipe A=
2}{/ ] Hq ,g’\/\ M A _.
28/|/29‘c)) DT\ Troes.
QK/ /‘QOx qu&/\
&?\ '\W Do foces
Q%’/ “k%%,@,
13 |- IU/ Y 7 Haes
)13 | [Cr /\/ = Hawe
2%-\ - K A Colran)

54



Q\u;((i \ ?

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

111D ar
TF-\aq . %/é//
25049 /1;3 L:/AVM =
o800 1 P\ Mags
2o - 1" WAM)/& /\/hfl(
%0119 | 8- o ills
Lo5-0(-17 \/rﬂfg/gc%~
25 l% P ho aoy
250114 | le€ Cmt &y
26¢ (| 3% ZWM '
28011117 - Gravw.
28 019 1T Gl lin
2% 011G Adeler
~ e | P Cumpen
I\ \(/jg/w\ﬁ gw/\ﬂﬂ
181,19 Hea J QOJCOI/
il Wﬁ@/@

, =7 s
AANEE f} N (mu‘

55



G TR
S

e

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

ADDRESS

DATE NAME
2?/0(/ /¢ | Jegt Lennore/!
28 [o1 A | 1o Segen
0@7////%4‘\ - //E@MDJG{ o
1071 (% (BT el
28{4/-/7 /)/a/ﬁ‘ /Lamccﬂ
2%/ 114 '

2% ()14
24y )- 19,

93] /9

-:Z@{ L) 14

20 | ll‘1 I}Wd/éd W(da
2@)\[;o| S0P
axlihig | Goueth Cowr
'ZX/’/|61 Rosie Paice

i i ] Geran Roden

QAWM [T MAUsS
[ 1[0 Hotn D ans!
2,5///// q | €-Bctdctela
24/1/ 14 | ¢ valleio

56



Petition for support

We the sighed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE

ADDRESS

NAME

R&-1~20/%

Q) RIBRT

‘l‘]/l/Zom . ML n D

A9 = | ~AS (| LIYNIMAM . POLIELL
ZA-\-WW | e, Stee i

- | -1 TRICUK YRS
2% 1-19 | LK1/

1 I@Qjﬂ e

2////0 [/~

00119 | ISl

20t o | Astols
24119 | Marney (AT
29. 1.19. Simon Pt
24y 14 | WhwE  aaicd
&Cxl)m(tcx | G L Bond -
a4 ol )(G\ Ba Bacd -
Q|0 [ 1=t Y e T
Q"l/af}i"( C e 0 O
29 (ol [V | T Qoo
9011\ A ':\T'\&glwnep/

57



e

KO@ \Q .

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
'Z% T NG Iy Doﬂd/l;ﬁ&w
/1 g e Cowett
27/// 1 | Corr L
2h] N \f\cqu WA
2?”" IV\ /ﬂl(/('\f/\) I)V‘,/\
L /Z?/O s
29/, 14 /0/1/\( [HEL17 1=
7-“(/’/‘01 Jo C@W'“
26”' I 1< ‘\")\(,9‘,‘1 Mé(ao
610”'((@1 ICI&sfud o
Q,L‘\“((‘l MM@
291 (X e \}W«—/"\ﬂ"
99 | 14, [A Lw |
2(4 l "\q l()i\'\ ‘l\.}cup\na\ﬁ
O// /{C( wf&}_@ﬂ Wil
%6/? NN (Z g\)cukl,
CHh
\\\T \(;’Q;JIL)\/
sefufia | 9. fut

(

58



e 16,

) O&

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local

petrol station

and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which

would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

ADDRESS

DATE NAME
20/ // 9 - (ucmé)@m—-f
wll1g | b I/Jaual\

2 el @dﬁu{pm
20 Jifred QN
2@(\ ( 2 &\G

Do~ N 14

o7

ze) L.

/il

)]

i

3o~ @ it Awwea |

P /%@szpwcw

Jod=t9 | N XY Dowes

O~ (-19 [ 12~ Cladeonag
v/l < fe Sy A
219 wes (hekey
3V V| Do vy alk

59



Petition for support

We the signed below wouid like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

ADDRESS

VA

J \"/lv

DATE NAME
Jo. i ia | N “WW(S’M‘("/
0.1, 19| 1T Heg 5
G114 | Swurd
L) 19 | HARKAR
230117 | & Hoaimet
ﬁo‘/m/,v, L NI
3?/5///7 %/17
A )i fee 2>
R a».\\\‘\ A | = Koo
S llll5 |R. [enenA
sq/c:z/m /4' cens
SAlq  |\ppew s C?#
S0 119 |TT Grove®
30 11149 S - Mk,

Bo.1. 1= W Voo i~ GO
G Sesd
20-[-14 | M-Cresevy
%0,,]_\0\ M - abton
301-19 | € Jlovellyn




Petition for support e

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME

ey = C 2 R
2)0' ’ . l R C"@é\Lc.

VEPNN ) i|o—ass .

50, 119,

30 1 1@ M Tomv iAS
30 /.iq |S Hole
.1\ | KenZeroro

30/@1 /l < {‘Diw@q

'}d/(ﬂ// /7' ]Z '(}c‘ww}?ha j//\

30/,/'6( icm I(\db
3 /{{ % /)Wa\ (/‘,H,,\
AO{O\/\/\ @cevmﬁé

70/,, ey s

é,RLL_\J-M CLEER

3"""”‘ Bt Spoeq

- - Sl

SO g | TS

Sravie R A

}gm\e‘ eSS

RVATat SuAun  Bisued

61

ADDRESS




62




Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. Itis a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS W
Sl | 6 M ghites
"51\\ \\v\ ESHV NN =
2009 | Focwon
LS WO oo
3019 [ Qe

Lot Seren

G‘- LJ(_')&C[*CO‘C{ )

20 /) 1t |9T Pt
W1/ s |kt
3//{//‘7 N PiECH
A S ArTimgs
il [ W) aepesd
i N R (O &JQ@

3/////4/“

\D( ,/{7(/W55W‘

”)f/ 'J/(Q\ g 73(0@,2//(75 ;

2 /}3 ,e’!(' /\( v \ )

Y .}/ {1 DRGININEAAS

U 1 1D | Dot pleimons
/2] (9] K MIHASL
s

| Q14

%2 BudESS

63



—

Teiee L

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol

beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME

aleon | Tl
‘}Z/?c’/? Q Wtbdewn S
| [2 s L cagme
[/ Z/ 2| 1A Uoool
/2 oo 1K 0 St
S 2o T | SoEA Ko
/;/'é/zoﬂ? Lucps VETEA

ADDRESS

O\/oi/‘lo\“« C O Lo

' )
3,} 02" 14 \/ M(l‘@(\\)@u»-
o)y | M STRAKE

=

9 ST A &2

=

A Steanker
2- T v ¢

=
n-2-1v4 | &, SUMJ&S

20191 D S«:b&
l-2 -9 FW

Z-2- L&w e
2~2~[9 771: /%iivt/“w
2/2//’*7, VZ 7/“24"4%

64



Pagye =

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local

petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which

would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining

their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
Z/ Ol// 204 [WWndte £ (dadeluda s,
Z|2jin |Chisls U,
‘ZL"'L\“"( \QO Q\MAMSQ:.\
2 !1, ) 61’@?«\ Bewoee
> 7 =1 | Zronat doams
0214 | beernen Jouss
221 07 ‘ LwMM‘—Xcmﬁ
325 /\(-Q\\—-\ =
3211 /f// ?/
521G | ete Lok peos
3219 | Huwle Clanfod
.00 19 | g BRly
329 Qﬂ\’\’\o{\u\ S

3.2 |G C;\JA«J«
D Ao Q| TS L N

e DANMEIE
o (

%/‘.CM_/G;

NN ?%@

L) cdorenn

y

65



‘—Qu,jg QD
Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
‘beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

A W

[/Z/‘ﬁg /70( 5 Manol
5/2//"! M—E YLLISons
s/2)10 | el

S/ Z/I 9. | E Lece\qje .
9/7//( e | P 08U

SI2J 1A | A AvDn CRosS

Sl A | CANE A ES

o M) wok

oy A ~LL{@¢MP-

S//L/(,k j\ww&——

Sle/ra € I )

5 ’2 1] "/\/' RO, 4*-(1]

S/2/2009 | i, e

oJ /%(/Zwﬂ /(/ /x//‘zjf

b] 2/) 2 O\A < P ieexw®K

sl | wpaszigaosie

Ol wp| RRL Y

S1z)ie] Sae AT




Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. Itis a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
5/2f 14 Liry o ums
g /Z / =1 M\/.;Qc—/ Mz s
Sl | vy 0
5219 |Q¥aron an
7% COHAS Wﬂ%
S 21 éﬂ\n
S/ 14 M E(LES
5h)ig | Lar
& 2 19| \. Gotperve |
52N | o plerins 5
S-2 | Belen
Sfefra [L08 Rreketl.
([2/1a |B Porell

ok AN TS

({3/02 /19 s f%{/cww/
211 |5 Petded
7/ 7,//”/ v gwue/ﬂn'
g, ll”( V)Ls MW

Qe .

67



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

ADDRESS

DATE NAME
|
5 } Z ( 1 | Paxy 'ua;&\f
SL19 |vwweaaer
ﬁ/z/l 1 /l.-leZtT&fﬂMbA
¢)2/19 | STEVE Bl
bl2li< | Murbe Wobsto,
828 T(%\‘c XYY ,43'
¢ L \”’\‘ MAS s Da‘;bq___
g2 19 {Jon Henpee
%0 14 Medun Chghi-
g', 2. / T W\\a x\'g/ TBW/S
%/2/19 |Mike Lewis
!%//2/1 I I evor Cx(e/u\
2 e O
o ) | (et Pijeo
-2 | G
209 ey i W edhan
Pl i
3 akdewns
8247 | J fpacons

68



/?"f?/“iyiy

————

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local

petrol station

and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which

would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS T
§2- (o (WAl
2 A\ Chlle -
EZ (& D:S'Mzég
g/ . /‘4/ ] &\égjzgd
L od (8 | o p A
3/02!#’{ ‘B'”mue{[é

”7//(7 A ole
Q/_g D%w((

q.7.19 F EelPnicy
A.v- 19 | € vonkleny
ao.(q. | wmECYAN
gz 1< | M hpis
q.2.1¢ S. CopFIEWw.
q-214 |S  Sidoun
9214 | R dihg
47 A 1\/\_"\".#\-/?(#"‘ﬂ

LA\ U M

69



&J;@ / [
Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
‘”»(l q ‘fz;n [oese wmace
qQ |2 [ | Chisire Watdirs
1) 214 |, Lol L
%/L/t‘( Dalte &v,gmg |

A2 REBR ReWRERRY
e VAR C,&%y gmﬁ(é@mm\’
AL49 W

G -3 14| D Tloman
q.fc)»‘lc‘ Q‘&CM\S
\g\fv_\ G [T

g0 |}y [ W~r——

(6 ( 0 ]| wel rpag~ <
zo/a//y 39 WeEee
tbl 1( 19 | £ Rollen

L0 2 (q C. bl
SRS 57’/ LA T
0219 | W) Wennes
lo-h 19 | M. Marususs

P Sequpra

10/2/19
-

70



(%ji?\cf( €

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

j6-2-19 | dseeny BEAL

0-2-14 | Ggivg QuA N

T O L B = Y Ne e
(2.2 1% | Ve Podrtes
o1 | N fadkbeed
0-2-19 | Fooe degmnnd
029 | [T
10247 |f [ layd

/ﬂ/é//7 4/%/1,1/ s
/ 5/?’6/ 14 / ///@ /4/6////0/1
ofe/1e | )A
Wzl ca | FnD
0/2)19 | CAIS  Sigaug
©O)z2f1q4 | Claree " clipice
u)/L L4 | Nomd Ve
()/7 /{ Q/&VM O TJev
\0/7 vmmw

m\;i lC\ S Lo NN DY

\ N

e 2| | “SaelRubn

71



=
\)2((( J,

? =Y
Petition for support -

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which

. would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

]

DATE NAME ADDRESS
JO/L)2e | 1S T LN
ol 2o | p1s Pt
o /2] 1 Lvoim  GRIFFTHS
/g/z// 17 | A
(29419 |1SC AT
(/219 KL D™
(0219 |s0Sb Uncere
/0/2 /14 fernon e
/U/f»/W &, ﬁ:é;f/

olzlie (/- M. Joeo

10/7/[ A | ™o
[0.7 14 T Perruiia
[0-2-19 }( Shencer
[@-2 & @ SpPew
0204 | 5 L,

/-2~ (5 W%@c

(04— \g e g
lo-T .- /{/[ Z/L/A~/\
"\/'k [i ~ (Z - W\‘;f;\wu

72



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. Itis a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
f‘O/ ﬁ//f S@Wfro\)&
16 /714 | Chelsié <ougpg

0/2/19

Ohlop  Forson

176«“M 7 56@4%%/ g

[

LI /2') )9

0 /2119 S -
02 e
(7§ Eothen
y Bear Hela,
| O Shidicomdhe
L T M6
loz)1g4 | A freictee:
0. 02 11 | STEMNY LoNG
(2. 2. | Soh Tictunk
109 \A [Sogre Ndousins
of1)14 |k eth Taulor
/L}/é/) g ("?/‘&d GLZQ/\
ohlg | lsa Dande
ol2/ 4| e NS
g / 7 ! '\% VJQ N /i/rvl:?c

73



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
ola|iq |5 T€OEWT
02 /(4 C Wanloy;
/O/Z/M v . \dFHZcLV((
of2 N1 | w. GeansT
/)O/Z/ 94 v)\ Mepper)
fp/’&/m /‘[\—'MVAI'ATV
6/ e Moo
&/ Sl b
IS \‘2 \‘\Q\ D Q’(\bﬁ?\/\
/2007 | W wneplovs 2>
19/2/19 | P77 Mo
(Y2 /11 /. Emoor

of2fsa |00 Qemmnd)
0> (F Pre~ Se
10217 |\) £ dious
(0)2] (3 | Losduie—r
/0/‘2//9‘ Jau[ /éo%/_;_/\/‘
/O/l/ IS S
07 )A /7 00D

74



Pace O

I

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. Itis a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
€ A g L— ,v\\
Il for) 1 Hendh Lbens
/) Zf ¢y Dowin SeEDDOV
Wotla DAvIrn  Hatcmou

11)02/ 15 | LS d B et
/o -

L/UZ/W ). _/’7%(

e/ | E- Fom

el | D

J
w24 2w MSEN)

/1)t | S felli

NTCI R N

< N
i /L/l a | Se Mot

fl/ZI"( it/w
11 I ] L. Ao

/2104 | e Todhoed—
V(& Jroyedang
(<1 | Conme’
! /4/ﬁz¢%;/z}7/“'
! CLAiee JONES.

75




Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

76

| DATE NAME ADDRESS
\ \ 7\*2\@8 \}n QGUAS&}&

1 -2-19 | Dl e,
| _7 04 MufPl\\,\ Llowyd,

=i //ng,

=2 =9 willlams

- L= | M, DSy

.. A\glae —
/;l{ Vo N s e Hesom
/) q st L\)of—e,v-g
il/&jxﬂ //ﬁ/éér\)
" H Sewc

W\ 2114 C. N auig
H/‘l/ldt IC . Serviens
I'I/Z//Q L - MFenr

I, Z// g _SC&’M Mcm/aw C
) ) D. Soyce
O\ T chelcsn
L2V | WC Qe e
122a [ Shioes




Petition for support —

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME
2.2 14 |eeege WKL
(2~ 2N | Dy L
LT\ Otﬁ(uwm/\ Mewe
bl L/ ‘cg; 1\7 wiwp U
i2/2 /19 | A St

W7/ =
2] 2] (L. MyeX
L’A‘H \9 LU\-Q \\l/f»z/i'f’\ |
L9 ,[(/j‘ Ay oy s (ﬁ/t C&/
i | Mek Aévew
f2]d | Tengs Awoer
)D_ LD \C‘} 563‘6,0\/\ ‘b o

/—L//é‘« Sr/)

12/02/19
!

—

%

Y

LMy Pk
Nl
L TMW\A\'/ |

12/62(19
2] 14

C/’“A/‘/fe , / 7(;0‘!/7 ¢

A 0/ (O

===

77

ADDRESS




78




<.

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
)2/ QNG
"//”27\6) /W/«\W
Y17 | S haigeomns
13)2) 9 | #IOSEFR,
13/2/17 |0 Gieaten
/2/)\/ Ja |- (B

1
[?{l{(‘!‘ Don Q(CQ .
22 (1n | Fhpece Bedol
12/02/1 7 2w MthcpJ
12 joelt9 | ellum Elemson
ozl | #). [cucton.
2211 | . @oron
12017 | C.Hazgell
Q/'Z/[@ - Scovan
AT P Crcae .
nft{g | Qe el
g | S Qrulips
¢ r« / ////

| , 7
e | mdrEr




?&% ‘i%”“

Petition for support

We the signed below wouid like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE

ADDRESS

NAME

(2r2, (g

/ehwbézcw"ﬂ

/; Ksﬁ? G/QLU\ :

[, Be

6 E~ ]QOu'l/.)rN 0)

Q\ M eodvnsie

Corl  Coy f Xy

1 EAgT

ﬁé\q

lateo R

-2 4

Doavin 81510

(-2

RoG-ex_ SH Inlsn ]

[2-29%

B =<

*{\ OL) S

1222 14

<, Lo,

,-5/%//01 .

@@mk& |

13)2/14

. Po beris

\3/&/16;

o Doty éS




ELC/\U %()
Petition for support .—

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

1821 |z mewrsoi Tl
/2019 [ 1% ( cmpedt

\ 4 ege RBanes

B2 1 | Rulk s

\t ok PW

Jam e Qobus

(\ e ek
IS {'Z (| A m\ %’}”AL

" Matners SAdDERS
-2 14 [ Nids R
i3-2-1°9 | i \Dou/ej(

/714 /Q@é// Shaffo
,'3/2/// Vi K pRAA oD
/500 | & e .
2ot Miasol
132709 | Wi 1 Ml
3/2 /) = Wakeo

3] // | T slepton




I,Q/?LC((i ‘ \3 /7

T —
— =

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS
Blfia SO
5/1//6/ M ARA o K dd
/?/ 19 | Zron Hovllls
/3/1//&/ Ao fh iy
Nlie | prec oo
i?‘/l / 9 (=R ol WiE-
o <
| !3/2//0/ CSIATIAO
/3/ 2//? J C/wmu/
Z/Z [ /\J@//
el | .8
[9/2/ 1y %//WM
13} /ﬁ F( Jﬂwq
’3/2/ A 700‘\%‘
5/2)14 A Ty, a
wed 13| 14| 0 4 et

3 }Z//Ci IS

) )
T{DJ\ eSS

2-[2)A

" A Qoiad |

82



Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in

them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

/ 3/?,/ W g wwircd
/3 o /%2/}/,2 Wo ol
)[2)19 | Seiett
RAEE =S
o2l | A LAl
/3/2/ (9 | Tose Rarivg
[2/2/¢7 ﬂmz@/d
(vl g | ) westreck
13249 | T Q\\)M\M\
122 (4 | £ Davies
5.2 1% | Clda i ou
)32 9| et
3Ly
13- 2-1 Y
(13- 2-1S
&%/Z/IC?
\3(/1/(”1
2.2\,
1329




'&j@ko( e (:%0(

e
e —

Petition for support

We the signed below would like to support the forge filling station, our local
petrol station and general store. It is a crucial part of our community which
would benefit from them specialising in local ciders and branded alcohol
beverages, we wish them the best and hope our signatures will be beneficial in
them gaining their alcohol licence.

DATE NAME ADDRESS

¥ / ol //4/ /ﬂé%z A TE e 2

[ 30 2l g | Dovidu oleloh L g

S~ M/( [Popo-
[3/2/19 | [ #ea K?M
3/2/19 Dozz bl
24| Zoani (S
(% Jo e feigh-thdnsa Cogtany
[Y2NF | Lo oo
13/2/19 | Sirton THoAS2m
At | Sedb oshil
[>°2-) Pacd Lo 17
3~2=1g | MoGin  Nogay

12-2. 07 | Sonallen L =S
1321 | o, gareR

12-2-19 | L Sprem

[2°2 19 QR Pdt= 2

84



Appendix 6

Forge Filling Station
Wormbridge
Herefordshire

HR2 9DH

Providing Evidence

In the enclosed we intend to prove that the forge filling station is primarily used as a grocery
store with customer volumes and does comply to the alcohol licencing department for us to
obtain an Alcohol Premise Licence for an Off Licence.

We would also like you to be aware that after 5.30 pm we are the only shop open within 4
miles of either direction of our premises that are open to serve the rural community until

the other business open in the morning.

Enclosed are:

e Photographs of premises

e Licencing laws regarding alcohol sales at rural stores supplying fuel
e Proof of unit sales of Groceries Vs Fuel

e Previous/existing and proposed grocery sales growth

e Basic lists of groceries sold

e Local residential support in favour of us gaining this licence

e Adjoining businesses and outbuildings

85



# ForoEFmULNGSTATION B

I el

86




87



\f\l
\‘ W

Mol ++ e@d

T\ou’/;-c,lfs

LL’J?L:\ 4 Poducts

88




Licencing Law

This 1984 law was originally intended to prevent petrol stations that have their main
sales through petrol and attached businesses to them such as garage repairs, car sales it
was not intended to be against rural stores, this we can prove from both council
licencing laws and high court rulings.

ltem 1:

If it was the intention that petrol garages with grocery stores are not able to sell alcohol
why may | ask are their probably a countless amount of garages throughout the country
able to supply alcohol, one typical example a petrol station only 4 miles away from us
that sell over 4 million litres of fuel yearly are able to provide this service in which we

are trying to gain.
ltem 2:

It clearly states in the attached copy of the England and Wales High court Decisions
paragraph 21 section 5.24 the approach by the council, “if a garage shop in a rural area
is used more intensively by customers purchasing other products than by customers
purchasing product or services for the retailing petrol the retailing of derv, the sale of
motor vehicles, the maintenance of motor vehicles”.

We have provided you with clear till receipts which prove the items of sales of shop
items are 5x greater than the items of fuel sales.

ltem 3:
As stated in the association of convenience stores appendix 1 highlighted paragraph

“if customers use a forecourt store for purchasing products other than petrol more than
they do for purchasing petrol then the premises is not primarily a garage. This is based
around a proportion of transaction for petrol as opposed to transactions that don’t
involve petrol”.

Item 4.

High Court Cases, here are two high court cases that ruled in favour of the garages due
to the volume of sales on Groceries Vs Fuel. The cases are ‘Green Vs Justices, 13t June
1994’ and the second case is ‘R Vs Liverpool Crown Court 17" December 1998'’. Again,

about the intensity of use by customer at these premises.

Please see attached a copy of these laws and highlighted sections which are stated
above.

89



90



13/0142019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristal City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

& England and Wales High Court

*#" (Administrative Court) Decisions

You are here: BAILII >> Databases >> England and Wales High Court (Administrative Court) Decisions >> Murco Petroleum
Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

URL: http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992. html
Cite as: 174 JP 425, [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin), (2010) 174 JP 425

[New search] [Printable RTF version] [Help]

Neutral Citation Number: [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin)
Case No: CO/14774/2009

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE

QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION
ADMINISTRATIVE COURT
Royal Courts of Justice
Strand, London, WC2A 2LL
30/07/2010
Before:
MR JUSTICE CRANSTON
Between:
R (on the application of) Murco Petroleum Limited Claimant
- and -
Bristol City Council Defendant

Mr Roy Light (instructed by Hook and Partners ) for the Claimant
Philip Kolvin QC (instructed by Bristol City Council Legal Services) for the Defendant
Hearing date: 24 June 2010

HTML VERSION OF JUDGMENT

Crown Copyright ©

Mr Justice Cranston:

Introduction

1. In this judicial review the claimant seeks permission to challenge the decision of the licensing
(hearings) sub-committee of Bristol City Council ("the Council"). That decision was to decline to
entertain its application for a premises licence Uélfler the Licensing Act 2003 ("the 2003 Act") for

http://www.bailii.org/lew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 110



13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

premises known as Costcutter, Henleaze Service Station, Bristol so that it could sell alcohol. The
claimant owns Henleaze Service Station. It operates a network of such petrol stations throughout the
United Kingdom, most with convenience shops attached. Its experience is that the combination of
petrol station with a supermarket or shop enhances the profitability of forecourt operations.

Background

2. In January 2009 the claimant made an application for a premises licence to allow off-sales of alcohol
from 6am to 11pm on each day of the week. The application form was in the standard format. In part
"P" of the form the claimant set out the various measures it intended to take to promote the four
licensing objectives such as an alarm system, CCTV, alcohol training for staff, and demanding proof of
age by young people. Attached to the application was a pie chart for the period 1-15 December 2008,
which showed that 16.8 percent of customers used the premises for fuel only, 16.9 percent for shop
only and 66.3 percent for mixed shop and fuel.

3. Notices were given of the application pursuant to the statutory requirements. A number of
representations were made. These included two representations from local residents, who referred to
alcohol sales at a petrol station. The Gollop family, which live about a third of a mile away, wrote that
"this is a petrol station and not a supermarket and should not be granted a licence to sell alcohol".
There was reference to another petrol station with a shop in the vicinity, where the licensing committee
had given the applicant time to prove that it was a supermarket rather than a petrol station. That, said
the Gallop family, should be done here. Mr and Mrs Malyckyj wrote:

"We feel that the granting of such a licence would encourage binge drinking, which is
something the Government is trying to discourage and will contravene the rule "Don't
drink and drive!" We therefore feel that the granting of such a licence is totally
inappropriate on garage premises frequented by motorists and is not conducive to a
residential area".

4. On 12 March 2009, the matter was considered by the licensing (hearings) sub-committee ("the sub-
committee"). In the course of the hearing the sub-committee inquired whether the premises were
primarily used as a garage or formed part of premises which were primarily so used. The claimant
argued that the sub-committee had no need to consider the primary use of the premises. The sub-
committee rejected that and considered it had insufficient material to consider the issue properly. It
decided to defer the matter. It issued a notice of adjournment until 28 May 2009. That stated that the
sub-committee was dissatisfied with the information so far provided, and what further information it
needed. In particular, the sub-committee sought

"... more cogent evidence of transactions broken down identifying numbers of
transactions made by:-

o customers making fuel transactions only

o customers making fuel and convenience store transactions only
o customers making convenience store transactions only

o customers using the car wash facilities

o customers using the air and water facilities ...

... over a much longer period than two weeks — preferably over a six-month
period to enable them to more accurately consider the matter."

5. On 22 April 2009 the claimant wrote to demand that the application be determined. It included an
advice by Mr Roy Light stating that no further evidence would be produced: the Council did not have
power to consider primary use; and in any event, the evidence already provided was adequate. On 12
May 2009, the Council wrote to the claimant reiterating its request for further information, and
pointing out that if the facts were as suggested ignzthe pie chart it was in the claimant's interests to

http://www.bailii.org/lew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 2/10



13/0142019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

provide the evidence. The claimant wrote again on 15 May 2009 to state that it was not willing to
provide the information.

6. The claimant's letter was placed before the sub-committee. It accepted that it could not require
information relating to car maintenance. It was not attempting to impose onerous obligations on the
claimant and wanted a resolution of the impasse. What it desired were details of till receipts or
transactions for a specified 75 minute window for each day in the period of 1-15 December 2008, the
dates of the original pie chart. The claimant declined to supply further information and in its letter of
22 May 2009 suggested that the Council proceed to a determination based on the pie chart which had
been produced. There was a site visit on 28 May, immediately prior to the hearing that day. At the
hearing the claimant requested that the sub-committee perform its statutory duty to determine the
application. Because of the claimant's refusal to provide the information requested the sub-committee
to adjourn the hearing further. The Council sent a notice of adjournment. The adjournment was until
the first available date following receipt of the information requested. The notice stated:

"The Committee deliberated at length but were not satisfied that the evidence produced by
the appellant was sufficient to enable them to assess, on the balance of probabilities,
whether the premises are excluded premises within the meaning of the Act. Further, the
Committee consider that the letter dated 20 May 2009 represented a reasonable
compromise to enable them to make a decision. The Committee were very disappointed
that the applicants were not willing to provide the documentary evidence used to support

the pie chart.

If the applicants are unable to provide the documentary evidence requested in the letter of
20 May 2009 for the period stipulated in that letter, then they should provide the
equivalent information over an alternative period of two consecutive weeks".

7. On 18 June 2009 the claimant emailed the Council to state that it was not prepared to provide the
information sought on 20 May 2009. Instead, it provided the same kind of pie chart information as it
had originally, but for the period 1-19 April 2009. It also stated the number of times a cash point
machine had been used on the premises. It explained that it could not provide itemised information
since this was overwritten on a rolling monthly basis. On 31 July 2009, the Council wrote that the
matter would be re-listed on 17 August 2009. It stated that the claimant need not confine its evidence
to the dates requested but could select any two-week period. The Council also asked the claimant's
managing director to attend the hearing to present the information requested and to answer any

questions members might have.

8. At the 17 August meeting the claimant was represented by its counsel and a licensing consultant, who
stated that no further information would be provided. Counsel submitted that the sub-committee had
no right to determine the issue of the primary use of the premises. The sub-committee determined that
it did have the power to make such a determination, for the reasons set out in its record of decision. In
making its determination it took into account the Secretary of State's guidance set out in paragraph 9,
which it considered to be a correct statement of the law.

"The licensing sub-committee does not accept that the applicants are unable to provide the
information requested. The licensing sub-committee have been very flexible in terms of
the information it has requested and the applicants have resisted each request ...

The members were unanimous that they were unable to determine what the primary use of
the premises was due to the lack of transactional information covering the shop and fuel
use. Therefore, the application could not be determined either way. The members did not
consider that in these circumstances they could grant or reject the application as their
decision could not in their opinion be an informed decision without the information that
they had requested on a number of occasions.

The members were also concerned as to why the applicants were so resistant to the supply
of straightforward trading information, and believe that the probable answer is simply that
the supply of information would not assist the applicant's case, and indeed might lead to
an immediate prosecution were a licence ¢@ be granted. However, in the members'

http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 3/10



13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

experience, it is far better for applicants to take a frank, co-operative approach to enable
the authority to take an informed decision based on material co-operatively given rather
than, as happened here, for an applicant to take a plainly selective approach based on
partial information so as to persuade the licensing authority to grant the licence. The
applicants' approach to this matter is inimical to the partnership approach which underpins
the new licensing legislation, and members wish to record their disappointment at the
outwardly uncooperative stance taken by applicants here".

9. Since the matter seemed to the claimant to have been brought to a conclusion, rather than adjourned,
the claimant lodged an appeal on 17 September 2009. The Council maintained that no decision had
been made in respect of the application and accordingly no right of appeal to the Magistrates' Court
arose. In early November the Magistrates' Court declined to accept jurisdiction. It wrote: "The Act
does not allow a Magistrates' Court to review whether the decision made by the relevant licensing
authority is one which the Act permits to make". That approach was reiterated by the Magistrates'
Court in late November.

10. The claimant sent a letter before action in November 2009 and this judicial review was filed on 12
December 2009. It was considered on the papers in March this year by Ian Dove QC, a deputy high
court judge, who decided that the case merited an oral hearing in relation to permission to apply for
judicial review. Given the pressure on the lists in the Administrative Court, and with the agreement of
the parties, I treated that hearing as a rolled-up hearing to consider both permission to apply for
judicial review and the substantive issue itself.

The legal framework

11. The 2003 Act rationalised the licensing regime to introduce a single scheme for licensing premises
which sell alcohol or provide regulated entertainment or late night refreshment. For present purposes a
key change was that it transferred primary responsibility for licensing from the justices to local
authorities, with magistrates' courts now exercising a purely appellate jurisdiction. Licensable
activities are set out in section 1 of the Act and include the sale by retail of alcohol: s. 1(1)(a). Section
3 constitutes councils as licensing authorities and section 6 obliges each licensing authority to establish
a licensing committee of at least 10 members. The licensing committee may arrange for the discharge
of its functions of determining an application for a premises licence by a sub-committee: ss. 10(4)(a);
10(4)(a)(i). Appeals against the decisions of licensing authorities are to the magistrates' court on
questions of both law and fact: s. 181; Schedule 5. Section 4 of the Act provides that a licensing
authority must carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.
These are listed in section 4(2) as (a) the prevention of crime and disorder; (b) public safety; (c) the
prevention of public nuisance; and (d) the protection of children from harm.

12. A premises licence is a licence authorising the use of premises for one or more licensable activities: s.
11. Applications for a premises licence are governed by section 17 of the Act:

"(1) An application for a premises licence must be made to the relevant licensing
authority.

(2) Subsection (1) is subject to regulations under —
(a) section 54 (form etc of applications etc)"

The relevant regulations are the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licenses and Club Premises
Certificates) Regulations 2005, SI 2005/42 as amended. An application has to be accompanied by an
operating schedule which as the name suggests sets out what is proposed to be done under the licence:
s. 17(3)(4). Sub-section (5) provides that the Secretary of State must by regulations require an
applicant to advertise the application so as to bring it to the attention of interested parties and to give
notice to each responsible authority (e.g. the police; the environmental health department): s.17(5)(a)-
(b). The regulations may prescribe the period during which interested parties and responsible
authorities may make representations: s. 17(5)(c). Interested parties includes those living in the vicinity
of the premises, that concept concerning a physical and geographical relationship: s. 13(3)(a); R (4
94
http://www.bailii.org/lew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 4/10



13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Lid, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

Wins Leisure L.td) v Licensing Committee of Blackpool Council [2007] EWHC 2213 (Admin), [15]-
[20].

13. Section 18 deals with the determination of an application for a premises licence. It reads, in part:
"18 Determination of application for premises licence
(1) This section applies where the relevant licensing authority—

(a) receives an application for a premises licence made in accordance with
section 17, and

(b) is satisfied that the applicant has complied with any requirement imposed
on him under subsection (5) of that section.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the authority must grant the licence in accordance with the
application subject only to—

(a) such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule
accompanying the application, and

(b) any conditions which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the
licence.

(3) Where relevant representations are made, the authority must—

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and
each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is
unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned in
subsection (4) (if any) as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

(4) The steps are—
(a) to grant the licence subject to—

(1) the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such
extent as the authority considers necessary for the promotion of
the licensing objectives, and

(ii) any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be
included in the licence;

(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;

(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor;

(d) to reject the application".

Relevant representations are dealt with in section 18(6)-(9). In British Beer and Pub Association v
Canterbury City Council [2005] EWHC 1318 (Admin); (2005) 169 JP 521; [2006] BLGR 596,
Richards J said that the effect of the provisions governing the making and determining of applications
is that if there are no representations from responsible authorities or interested parties, the licensing
authority must grant the licence in accordance with the application, subject only to conditions. Where
relevant representations are made, there must generally be a hearing and a discretionary decision must
be made by the licensing authority: [14].

95
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 5/10



13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010) }

14. As with earlier legislation the policy of the 2003 Act is that alcohol should not be sold at service areas,
garages and the like. It seems that when originally adopted the policy was directed at removing the
temptation to drink and drive, although now this would be expressed as engaging the crime and
disorder licensing objective. Section 176 of the Act reads, in part, as follows:

"Prohibition of alcohol sales at service areas, garages etc

(1) No premises licence, club premises certificate or temporary event notice has effect to
authorise the sale by retail or supply of alcohol on or from excluded premises.

(2) In this section "excluded premises" means

(b) premises used primarily as a garage or which form part of premises which
are primarily so used.

(4) For the purposes of this section —

(c) premises are used as a garage if they are used for one or more of the
following —

(1) the retailing of petrol,

(ii) the retailing of derv,

(iii) the sale of motor vehicles,

(iv) the maintenance of motor vehicles".

The predecessor provision, section 9 (4A) of the Licensing Acct 1964 as amended, provided for the
exclusion of garage premises from receiving a licence depending on primary use.

"(4A) Premises shall be disqualified for receiving a justices' licence if they are primarily
used as a garage or form part of premises which are primarily to be used".

The editors of Paterson's Licensing Acts 2010 describe section 176 of the 2003 Act as a "better
arrangement" over section 9 (4A) in situations where premises "qualified" for sale of alcohol at the
time of the original licence application, but subsequently ceased to qualify because, for example, fuel
sales increased. Under section 9(4A) such a development meant that the licence could only be
removed upon renewal, or by revocation. Under section 176 the licence would simply cease to provide
a valid authority for sales (p. 519).

15. The concept of premises being primarily used as a garage under section 176 of the 2003 Act (and
section 9 (4A) of the 1964 Act) has been considered by the courts on at least two occasions. The first
was in Green v Justices for Inner London Area CO/487/93, unreported, 13 June 1994, a decision of the
Divisional Court. There the justices had concluded that the primary use of the garage/shop premises
was as a garage. The evidence from the applicant was that during the sample dates there were twice as
many customers using the shop as compared with the petrol and petrol and shop customers. As the
case came to an end the justices asked for figures about turnover and on that basis they reached their
decision. The Divisional Court held that they had applied the wrong test because they had compared
the gross figure for petrol sales and compared it with the figure net of VAT in connection with the
shop. However, it is clear from the judgment of MacPherson J (with whom Butler-Sloss LJ agreed)
that there was nothing improper in the magistrates examining turnover figures to determine primary
use.

96
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 6/10



13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

16. In R v Liverpool Crown Court ex p Goodwin C0O/2639/97, 17 December 1998, the justices rejected the
application for an off-licence because they held that the primary use of the premises was as a garage.
The matter went to the Crown Court, which dismissed the appeal. The Crown Court said that the issue
was how the premises were used: it "is a garage, it is known as a garage and having viewed the
photographs we take the view that it is a garage". Laws J referred to Green and then said:

"In the present case the fact is that quite apart from anything else that may be said, the
Crown Court have regarded the appearance of the premises and how it is known in the
locality as material to the question of primary use. That seems to me to be an erroneous
approach. The question must be, what is the intensity of use by customers at the premises?
So that evidence such as that of customer lists, to take an example, might be highly
material".

Thus Laws J quashed the Crown Court decision on the basis of irrelevant considerations.

17. Mr Light, who appeared for the claimant, informed me that, as a result of Goodwin, evidence on
primary use before licensing authorities typically takes the form of what could be described as
numbers rather than turnover. In other words, the intensity of use is measured by the number of
customers using the garage as opposed to the number using the garage and shop or the shop alone.

18. In my view it is a matter for each licensing authority to decide whether it will decide primary use on
the basis of numbers or evidence of turnover. It will be recalled that in Green the justices had been
presented with evidence of numbers but asked for evidence of turnover. The Divisional Court did not
question that. There is nothing in Laws J's judgment to suggest that intensity of use — the phrase used —
cannot be calculated by reference to the turnover figures.

19. The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing) Regulations 2005, SI 2005 No. 44 ("the Hearing Regulations")
governs the conduct of hearings by licensing authorities. A notice of hearing must be given and by
regulation 7(1) must be accompanied by information regarding

"(d) any particular points on which the authority considers that it will want clarification at
the hearing from a party."

20. There is a power to adjourn a hearing "to a specified date" where the authority considers this may be
necessary for its consideration of any representations or notice made by a party: reg. 12(1)(a).
Regulation 12(2) reads:

"Where an authority has adjourned a hearing to a specific date it must forthwith notify the
parties of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned".

Members of the authority may ask any question of any party or other person appearing at the hearing:
reg. 17. A licensing authority must make a decision within five working days from the day of the

hearing: reg. 26(2).

21. Section 4(3)(b) of the 2003 Act provides that in carrying out its functions a licensing authority must
have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. The Current Guidance was
issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport in March 2010 and laid before
Parliament, although the passages cited below have remained unaltered from earlier versions. As the
Guidance itself explains nothing in it should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden. That part of the Guidance relating to garages is as follows:

"Garages

5.23 Section 176 of the 2003 Act prohibits the sale or supply of alcohol from premises
that are used primarily as a garage, or are part of premises used primarily as a garage.
Premises are used as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following:

o the retailing of petrol

97
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 7110



13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)
o the retailing of derv,

o the sale of motor vehicles
o the maintenance of motor vehicles

5.24 The licensing authority must decide whether or not any premises is used primarily as
a garage. The approach endorsed so far by the courts is based on intensity of use to
establish primary use. For example, if a garage shop in any rural area is used more
intensely by customers purchasing other products than by customers purchasing the
products or services listed above, it may be eligible to seek authority to sell or supply
alcohol.

5.25 Where there is insufficient evidence to establish primary use, it is for the licensing
authority to decide whether to grant the licence and deal with any issues through
enforcement action or to defer granting the licence until the primary use issue can be
resolved to their satisfaction".

The claimant's case

22. The claimant's case is premised on the Licensing Act 2003 being far more prescriptive than the
previous legislation. Strict time limits apply at all stages of the procedure and the powers and duties of
the licensing authority are strictly controlled. Gone is the unfettered discretion of the licensing justices,
contained in the Licensing Act 1964. In its place are what Paterson's Licensing Act 2010 describes as
the tramlines of section 18 from which no licensing authority may depart (p. 62).

23. In Mr Light's submission an applicant is required by s.17(2)(b) to complete a comprehensive
application form to apply for the grant of a premises licence, which contains no reference to garage
premises or primary use. Upon receipt of the application the licensing authority must consider whether
it is a valid application, complying with section 17 of the Act. Here the council accepted the claimant's
application as valid and did not raise the issue of primary use. In fact the claimant attached the pie
chart about use to the application form. Only one valid representation from an interested party referred
to garages and alcohol, but it did not explicitly raise the issue of primary use. The Council properly
referred the matter to a hearing. The notice of hearing did not request any clarification on primary use
under regulation 7(1)(d). It was the Councillor chairing the hearing on 12 March 2009, who raised the
issue of primary use, along with a number of other matters which the Council subsequently accepted
were irrelevant.

24. In the claimant's submission the duty of the Council under section 18 is clear. It must grant the licence
or refuse the licence. There is no power to refuse to determine an application. If the Council was not
satisfied by the evidence on primary use it should have refused to grant the licence. The claimant could
then have appealed to the Magistrates' Court. Instead the Council has repeatedly refused to do that and
now claims that for a number of reasons it can depart from the clear duties laid down in section 18.
The sub-committee has purported to adjourn the hearing, when there is no power to do this. The
suggestion in paragraph 5.25 of the Guidance, that a licensing authority can defer matters, is wrong,
for it would have the effect that the licensing authority could defer an application indefinitely, thus not
only denying an applicant a licence but also precluding the opportunity to advance its case by way of
appeal to the magistrates' court. There is no legal basis for deferment referred to in the Guidance and
none contained in the Act. It would be quite wrong to utilise the general powers conferred by section
111 of the Local Government Act 1972 as it would not facilitate the objectives of the 2003 Act.
Instead, deferment would defeat the force of section 18 and effectively remove the right of appeal.
Moreover, the adjournment was not to consider any representation or notice made by a party, nor was
it to a specified date with the parties notified of the date, time and place to which it had been adjourned
as required by regulation 12 of the Hearing Regulations. To allow repeated adjournments under
regulation 12 would have the effect of defeating the wording of section 18 and effectively removing
the right of appeal.

25. Mr Light submitted that regulation 17, enabling members of the authority to ask any question of any
party or other person appearing at the hearing, dges not give an implied right to an answer if that is not

http://www.bailii.org/lew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 8/10



13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010)

forthcoming. A licensing authority cannot adjourn a matter indefinitely while it waits for an answer.
The proper course for a licensing authority, faced with what it perceives as an uncooperative,
unreasonable or dishonest applicant, is to refuse the application. There is then the possibility of an
appeal to the magistrates' court. If the authority's decision is upheld it is protected in costs. To allow a
licensing authority the power to ask for whatever information it wishes, and to fail to make a
determination if that evidence is not forthcoming, or is considered insufficient, takes away the
fundamental right of appeal against the decisions of licensing authorities.

Discussion and conclusion

26. In this case the claimant made an application for a premises licence to enable it to sell alcohol from a
shop attached to one of its petrol stations. The application triggered "relevant representations" under
section 18(6) of the 2003 Act, including from at least one "interested party" as defined in section 13(3)
(a). That was the letter from Mr and Mrs Malyckyj. The Gallop family also wrote, although the
claimant contends that they are not an interested party because they do not live in the vicinity of the
premises. There is no need for me to determine that issue, since it is accepted that the Malyckyjs
qualify as interested parties.

27. There was then a hearing before the sub-committee. The claimant accepted that it was proper to hold
that hearing pursuant to section 18(3)(a). Under sections 4 and 18(3)(b) the sub-committee was under a
duty in deciding on the application to act in such a way as was necessary to promote the licensing
objectives and in accordance with the overarching duty to carry out its licensing functions with that
end in view. To put it in the terms of the legislation, the Malyckyj's letter engaged the crime and
disorder and public safety licensing objectives. If the premises were primarily a garage and so were
excluded premises under section 176, their use for the sale of alcohol would be unlawful, thus also
engaging the crime prevention objective. The issue of the juxtaposition of petrol sales and alcohol was
thus firmly before the licensing sub-committee. In my view it was bound to consider it given the
Parliamentary policy on sales of alcohol at petrol stations. In reality the issue became the extent to
which the sub-committee was entitled to pursue it.

28. The first issue is whether the sub-committee was entitled to ask the claimant for trading information. It
will be recalled that the sub-committee was not satisfied with the information it had received, which
amounted to the pie chart of use over a two week period some months earlier. In my view it had the
legal power to ask for further information. At one point Mr Light seemed to suggest that the
Malyckyjs' representation was insufficient to enable the sub-committee to ask a question concerning
the use of the garage, and that nothing less than a specific reference by them to the terms of section
176 would have done. If so, I reject such a technical interpretation. It is far removed from the
administrative system with democratic participation by local residents contemplated by the 2003 Act.
The Malyckyjs' representation raised squarely the issue of sale of alcohol from garages. The licensing
authority set out to ascertain whether this was excluded premises within the meaning of the legislation.

29. Moreover, the fact that clarification was not asked for on a particular point in the notices of hearing
sent out under regulations 6 and 7 in no way limits the pursuit of the point at a hearing. Otherwise a
resident who had made a perfectly sensible representation would be debarred from pursuing it, not by
his or her own actions but by what a licensing authority had or had not requested of the other party by
way of clarification. I reject any suggestion that if a point is not mentioned in a notice of hearing this
prevents any party, or the sub-committee itself, from raising questions on material matters. Notices of
hearing as pro forma documents cannot limit the ability of sub-committees to investigate issues so as
to promote the licensing objectives through their decision-making.

30. Regulation 17 of the Hearings Regulations clearly permits the authority to ask any question of any
party. Moreover, in my judgment section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 confers an incidental
or implied power on the sub-committee to ask a question of a party, where the question is calculated to
elicit an answer which will facilitate the function of considering and adjudicating upon the relevant
question, in this case responding to the Malychyj's representations so as to promote the licensing
objectives: see Chief Constable of Nottinghamshire Police v Nottingham Magistrates Court [2009]
EWHC 3182 (Admin), [35]. I note in passing that whereas Schedules 6 and 7 of the 2003 Act amend

and repeal other sections of the Local Government Act 1972, they do not touch section 111.
99

http://www.bailii.org/lew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 9/10




13/01/2019 Murco Petroleum Ltd, R (on the application of) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin) (30 July 2010) .

31. Thus the question arises, about what information was the sub-committee able to inquire? I have
already said that the authorities recognise that trading information is relevant to the issue of "excluded
premises" under section 176 of the 2003 Act. In my view there can be no question but that the sub-
committee could ask about that information. There is no need for me to draw the parameters to the
information the sub-committee could ask about. Relevance and materiality are obviously central
considerations. The sub-committee requested further information regarding the operation of the
garage, such as car wash figures, but now concedes that it had no right to do that.

32. Once the claimant failed to respond to the question on turnover, the next issue is whether the sub-
committee was entitled to adjourn the hearing for a satisfactory answer. In my view it could do so,
since regulation 12 confers a specific power to adjourn where necessary for the consideration of a
representation made by a party. It is not a limited power to adjourn, for example, because a person falls
ill, as Mr Light at one point suggested. In my view the Guidance is correct when it advises that where
there is insufficient information about primary use the authority may defer the matter until the question
is resolved to their satisfaction. Here, the Malychyj representation had specifically concerned the
Jjuxtaposition of alcohol and petrol sales. No answer was forthcoming and the sub-committee
adjourned. However, an adjournment must be to a "specified date" under the Hearing Regulations. On
17 August the sub-committee, in effect, adjourned the matter generally. What in my judgment it should
have done was to adjourn the matter to a later, specified date, albeit that it appeared a stalemate had
been reached and the matter might have to be adjourned yet again.

33. Thus in my view the sub-committee was entitled to adopt the approach it did to the refusal by the
claimant to answer the question about trading figures. The answer lay wholly within the claimant's
own knowledge and was relevant and material to a consideration of the representation and the
promotion of the licensing objectives. As a matter of law trading figures can be used to determine the
issue of primary use under section 176: Green v Justices for Inner London. The sub-committee was
entitled to adjourn the matter until the information, lawfully required, was provided.

34. Any other construction of the powers of a licensing authority would turn it into a cipher. It would be
forced to make a decision on less information than necessary to promote the licensing objectives. A
licensing authority must be able to pursue issues of public safety, the protection of children from harm
and other objectives of the 2003 Act. The example proffered by Mr Kolvin QC, for the Council, is
apposite:

"Imagine a rock festival. A temporary spectator stand is proposed. A question is raised
whether it will be safe or a death trap. On the claimant's showing, the applicant can simply
refuse to tell the authority anything about the means of construction, the expertise of the
designer or the safety certification process, defying the authority to refuse the application
and risk having to respond to an appeal, with all the unnecessary cost and time that that
would entail".

The claimant's interpretation of the provisions of the 2003 Act and attendant regulations would make a
mockery of the standing of the Council as the licensing authority and its function as the primary
decision-maker. It would also be inimical to the aim of the legislation to promote the licensing
objectives. Perhaps as important it would frustrate the role which local residents have in making
representations under the 2003 Act and would downgrade the role of democratically elected decision-
makers.

35. I dismiss the claim.
BAILII: Copyright Policy, | Disclaimers | Privacy Policy | Feedback | Donate to BAILII
URL: http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html

100
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2010/1992.html 10/10



1.1

21

22

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

LICENSING COMMITTEE - 31 JANUARY 2007
PART | - DELEGATED

LICENSING ACT 2003 - SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL FROM PETROL FILLING

STATIONS
(DHH)

Summary

This report advises when a local licensing authority may grant a premises
licence to permit the supply of alcohol from a premises which appears to be an
‘excluded premises' by virtue of being a garage or fuel filling station.

Details

Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 states: No premises licence, club
premises certificate or temporary event notice has effect to authorise the sale
by retail or supply of alcohol on or from excluded premises.

In this section “excluded premises” means; premises situated on land acquired
or appropriated by a special road authority1, and for the time being used, for the
provision of facilities to be used in connection with the use of a special road
provided for the use of traffic of class | (with or without other classes); or
premises used primarily as a garage or which form part of premises which are
primarily so used.

The Act states that pemises are used as a garage if they are used for one or
more of the following:

= the retailing of petrol;

= the retailing of derv;

= the sale of motor vehicles;

= the maintenance of motor vehicles.

At first glance the law seems very clear on this matter. However it is well known
that many fuel filling/service stations have been selling alcohol from long before
the Licensing Act 2003 came into force, under the amended Licensing Act 1964.

The situation arises from an appeal in 1994Green v Inner London Licensing
Justices. In a case decided under the Licensing Act 1964, s9(4A) upon hearing
an application for a justices’ licence in respect of a service station licensing
justices had inadvertently comparedgross turnover derived from the sale of
fuel (including all taxes and duties) with the net turnover from sales of non-
disqualifying products. The Divisional Court quashed the justices’ finding that
the premises were disqualified by reason of subsection 4A and remitted the
case for a re-hearing. The Justices’ licence was subsequently granted, and the
Divisional Court decision became binding upon the lower courts.

This ruling was further tested inR v Liverpool Crown Court, ex p Goodwinin
1998 when Laws J held that the Crown Court had misdirected itself in finding
that “the appearance of the premises and how it is known in the locality as
material to the question of primary use. That seems to me to be an erroneous
approach”. The lower court had also had regard to “gross takings”, contrary to
the test which had been applied irex p Green.Quashing the decision Laws J
suggested that the issue for the purpose of the Licensing Act 1964, s9 (4A)
must be “What is the intensity of use by customers at the premises?” Lists of
customers, classified by usage, “might be highly material”.

1 Special road authority refers to either the Minister for Transport or a local highway authority acting —

the context relates to motorway service centres

101



2.7

2.8

29

2.10

2.11

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Licensing Act 2003 substantially reproduced the model for the exclusion of
so-called “garage premises” that has existed since the 1964 Act was amended
by the 1988 Act. However, historically premises were disqualified froneceiving
a justices’ licence, whereas under the new legislation a Premises licence which
has already been granted is stated simply to be afo effectwhere the relevant
premises are, or become, “excluded”. This is a much better arrangement which
covers the situation where premises “qualified” for sale of alcohol at the time of
the original licence application but subsequently ceased to qualify because, for
example, fuel sales increased. Traditionally such a development meant that the
licence could only be removed upon renewal or by revocation. Now, the licence
would cease to provide a valid authority for sales.

In a prosecution under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 (unauthorised
licensable activity) it would be for the prosecution to establish that even though
an ostensibly valid premises licence existed, the premises had become
“excluded” by reason of the altered nature of the business. Whereas it was
previously incumbent upon the licensing justices to undertake a detailed
consideration of whether, on the evidence, garage premises were entitled to be
granted or receive a justices’ licence at the time of the application, it can be
argued that under the new regime such an approach is less important since any
such licence granted permitting the supply of alcohol will simply be null and void
if the premises are or become, technically, excluded.

Although licensing practitioners consider this a better arrangement, there is now
no compulsion upon the license holder to periodically convince the licensing
authority (previously the justices every three years) that the licence is still of
effect. In the future, before any prosecution might be contemplated, where it is
suspected by the LLA or held by a representation that a garage/service station
had technically become excluded for whatever reason, it would be prudent to
first call for a review of the licence. Subject of course to sufficient evidence to
justify the decision, the LLA could require the licence holder to assess the
intensity of the use on a continual basis for a specified period, and to report the
data to the LLA. Modern tills are capable of recording the value and volume of
fuel sales versus non fuel sales and combined transactions.

Of course, such a review may be requested by a responsible authority but
cannot be initiated by the LLA itself.

Guidance to the trade from the Association of Convenience Stores is given at
Appendix 1.

Options/Reasons for Recommendation.

This report was initially requested for information only. However Committee may
wish to include more detailed reference to how this LLA will interpret and
address s176 in the consultation draft of the local licensing policy review. This
would have the benefit of offering an explanation of the process to those who
might wish to object to a new or varied licence application and to make it clear
to applicants of the nature and detail of the evidence required to show that the
premises is not already excluded under the Act.

Applications from garage/service station proprietors will normally be supported
by a legal representative familiar with the case law that has provided guidance
in the past. Such applications will no doubt be supported by a dossier of
evidence, obtained by customer survey, which will attempt to convince the
Licensing Sub-Committee that the net turnover from fuel sales is currently less
than that from non-disqualifying products (groceries, tobacco etc).

For the one application that has been determined for a premises licence
permitting supply of alcohol at a fuel station in Three Rivers, the dossier of
evidence was presented to the Sub Committee on the night of the Hearing. This
gives little time for a detailed exafiination of the facts. Officers recommend that



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

9.1
9.2

in future this evidence is included with the application and that the Licensing
Officer be authorised to reject applications that are made without such

evidence.
Policy/Budget Implications

The recommendations in this report are not currently within the Council’s agreed
local licensing policy.

Financial Implications, Equal Opportunities, Staffing, Environmental,
Website Implications

None specific.
Legal Implications

If the approach in this report at 3 is adopted this will improve the quality and
robustness of such decisions. It will also be helpful and fair to unrepresented

applicants.

However Committee should be wary of being too prescriptive as to the nature
and amount of supporting information it requires, as this might be said to
fetter its discretion. Ultimately the evidence is a matter for an applicant and his
advisers.

If no information is supplied to show, on a balance of probability, that the
premises are not 'excluded’, then the application should be refused.

Community Safety Implications

Applications for a review of a Premises licence at a service station are likely to
be made by Trading Standards, concerning under age sales of alcohol, or the
Police on the same grounds or from a prevention of crime and disorder

perspective.
Risk Management Implications

There are no risks to the Council in agreeing the recommendations at this
stage. Any risk identified by adopting the suggestion at 3.3 will be included in a
future report detailing the full results of licensing policy consultation.

Recommendations
That the Committee notes the contents of this report.

That the 2007 consultation draft of the statement of local licensing policy be
amended to include reference to; the criteria that will be used by the LLA in
determining applications from petrol & DERYV filling/service stations, and the
information that will be needed at the application stage to assist the LLA in
processing the matter.

Background Papers
Paterson’s Licensing Acts 2007 Vol 1, ISBN 1-4057-1588-x, Lexis Nexis

Butterworths

Report prepared by: John Scott, Commercial Standards Manager

Appendices
Appendix 1 — Guidance from the Association of Convenience Stores

103



Appendix 1

Association
of Convenience
Stores

ACS Introduction

This is an independently commissioned legal briefing from Professor Roy Light, University of
West of England for the Association of Convenience Stores and Lockett & Co. It sets out the
current case law on Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003, this is a re-enactment of
provisions s.9 (4)(A) and (B) of the Licensing Act 1964. This paper explains the criteria
against which the “premises used primarily as a garage” test has been addressed in case
law.

The reason that many forecourt store operators have legally obtained alcohol licences is
because they have satisfied the court that their sites are not primarily a garage based on:

Turnover: If a store is a bigger part of the business than the sale of fuel, then it is not
primarily a garage. It is important though to acknowledge that these calculations are only
done fairly if they are presented net of VAT and duty, which is disproportionately high on
petrol.

Customer Use: If customers use a forecourt store for purchasing products other than petrol
more than they do for purchasing petrol then the premises is not primarily a garage. This is
based around the proportion of transactions for petrol as opposed to transactions that don't
involve petrol or involve petrol and other goods. If as is the case for many convenience stores
proportion of solely petrol transactions are not significantly larger than the proportion of non
petrol or mixed transactions then the premises is not primarily a garage.

Any questions contact Shane Brennan, Public Affairs Executive, Association of Convenience
Stores on 01252 515001 or email shane.brennan@acs.org.uk_

104



Licensing Act 2003 — premises primarily used as a ‘garage’
Professor R. Light — University of West of England

Section 176(1) Licensing Act 2003 provides that ‘No premises licence, club premises
certificate or temporary event notice has effect to authorise the sale by retail or supply of
alcohol on or from excluded premises’. One type of excluded premises is defined by
s.176(2)(b) as ‘premises used primarily as a garage or which form part of premise primarily
so used’. ‘Premises are used as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following
purposes’ - the retailing of petrol or derv, the sale or maintenance of motor vehicles

(s.176(2)(c)).

How will this section fall to be interpreted by local authority licensing committees? While at
first sight it may appear an easy and unproblematic provision — ‘there are petrol pumps at
those premises, therefore they are used as a garage, therefore they are disqualified’ — it is a
specific and technical section requiring careful interpretation and application. And as such is

far from simple.

Section 176(2)(b) and (c) of the 2003 Act intentionally, and effectively in the same words, re-
enact the provisions contained in s.9(4)(A) and (B) of the Licensing Act 1964. Valuable
guidance on interpreting and applying s.176 can therefore be found in the way in which the
courts and licensing committees have approached s.9 of the 1964 Act. High Court and Crown
Court decisions, together with decisions of licensing committees, have contributed to a

developing jurisprudence in the application of the law.

Background
‘Garage’ premises vary dramatically. There is the (increasingly rare) forecourt with pumps,

workshops carrying out servicing, repairs and MOTSs, a used car lot and a small shop selling
motor spares and accessories. Contrast this with a modern site retailing fuel from a
convenience store selling a wide range of groceries and other items. For as Paterson’s
Licensing Acts put it ‘service stations continue to be used increasingly for the purpose of
shopping as well as, or instead of, places for the purchase of fuel ..." (PLA, 2000, p.xiii).

Burden of proof

There is no general disqualification. Premises are only disqualified if they are primarily used
as a garage. There is an important distinction here. It is sometimes said that applicants must
show that the premises are primarily used as a shop. This is not the test. The test is are the
premises primarily used as a garage? So, it is submitted, there must be significantly more
garage use than other use for the premises to be disqualified. If there is roughly the same
use, for example, as a shop and as a garage, there is no primary use and therefore no
disqualification. The tribunal must be satisfied on a balance of probability that the premises
are primarily used as a garage, otherwise the premises are not disqualified.

Meaning of ‘used as a garage’

The first task is to ascertain the meaning of the term ‘used as a garage’. What is garage use?
The term is limited by the words of the legislation to four activities - the retailing of petrol or
derv or the sale or maintenance of motor vehicles. Other activities that may relate to motor
vehicles are therefore not included, for example car hire or a coach business. Of the four
‘garage’ activities, retailing of petrol or derv and sale of motor vehicles are straightforward
and have not led to any difficulties of interpretation. ‘Maintenance of motor vehicles’ has.
‘Maintenance of motor vehicles’

Given its ordinary meaning ‘maintenance’ includes workshop activities such as the fitting of
exhausts, tyres, clutches and engines or the carrying out of maintenance services. There is a
dedicated workshop area with spanners, ramps, mechanics and large drums of oil. Any such
activity will be included as garage use when assessing the primary use of the premises.

However, objectors to licences have, on occasions, sought to stretch this definition to include
the sale of items such as motor oil and car cagsproducts (polish, air fresheners, de-icer, etc)



from the forecourt shop. While such an argument may have a certain superficial
attractiveness — ‘it's to do with motor vehicles therefore it must be garage use’ - closer
inspection proves otherwise. It must be maintenance of motor vehicles; simply to be related
to vehicles is not sufficient. It is generally agreed that such sales falls outside the definition of
maintenance, as what they amount to is sales of items from a shop. The same Items can be
bought at a variety of premises, for example, most supermarkets; does this mean that those
premises are then being used as a garage?

It is also sometimes claimed that car wash and jet wash facilities are maintenance of motor
vehicles. Again, it is generally agreed that these are not the types of activity envisaged by the
legislature. The washing is carried out by the customer, rather than by staff at the premises,
and it is not ‘maintenance of motor vehicles’ in the generally accepted use of the term. It is
cosmetic. While the changing of oil and tuning of engines is usually listed in a car
maintenance schedule, washing the vehicle is not.

Evidence of how premises used
Authorities

Having arrived at an understanding of what constitutes ‘garage use’, how is such use to be
measured? Initially both financial turnover and customer visits were considered. The former
proved problematic on two grounds. First, the large amounts of duty and vat involved in fuel
and some shop sales needed to be removed to make a fair calculation. Secondly, the
turnover of the premises is a less accurate method of assessing customer use than
measuring customer use. Thus evidence of customer use is generally provided.

Two High Court cases have assisted consideration of how the premises are used. The first is
Green v Justices for the Inner London Area (13 June 1994) QBD (Divisional Court). This
case is authority for the proposition that if figures for financial turnover are used they must be
net of duty and vat. However, the judgment was that if net figures were presented the
licensing justices ‘may’ have come to a different decision — not would have come to a
different decision. Green also recognised ‘a large gain’ for applicants as there were many

more shop customers than fuel customers.

The second case, R v Liverpool Crown Court, ex parte Kevin John Goodwin (17 December
1998) QBD (Divisional Court) was much more certain in its view that the: ‘... appearance of
the premises and how it is known in the locality’ are not relevant: ‘the question must be, what
is the intensity of use by customers at the premises? So that evidence such as that of
customer lists, to take an example, might be highly material’.

As Paterson’s Licensing Acts put it ‘This seems to us, to be both an appropriate and
practicable approach to the interpretation of a measure which, presumably, was intended by
Parliament to bear upon the purposes for which the public actually use particular premises’
(2000, p.xiv).

Since Goodwin, data showing the intensity of use by customers are generally accepted as
the best evidence of how premises are used. For most applications these data are produced
in the form of a till analysis - either produced manually or, more usually, from computerised
records such as EPOS tills (electronic point of sale).

Presenting the data

Figures for a number of weeks or months (not too far back as the tribunal is interested in the
trading pattern of the premises at the date of grant for a full licence) are taken to show the
number of customers that used the premises for garage use against other uses. Typically
other uses will be shop use - sometimes referred to as a ‘basket analysis’ because it is
customer visits rather than number of items purchased that are recorded. So the purchase on
one item or ten items from the shop (a ‘basket’ of items) will be recorded as one transaction -
as will a purchase of five or fifty litres of fuel. Some customers, of course, will purchase both
shop goods and fuel - combining garage anl% é’non-garage use in one transaction. This will



then either be shown as a separate category - garage use, shop use and mixed garage and
shop - or simply be divided and added equally to shop and garage use.

Provisional grants

Here it will be necessary to present projected figures to demonstrate how the premises will
trade when they are built, extended, rebuilt, converted or in some other way altered that will
lead to a change in their use. For the tribunal must look at the premises on the date that the
licence is received - ie at final order. Tribunals may wish to hear evidence on the accuracy of
such projections and how they were arrived at. This will usually be provided by expert
evidence from those producing the figures - as to provenance, method of calculation and,
importantly, examples of other applications where projections have been used and shown to

be accurate.

Meaning of ‘primarily’

Having established what is meant by garage use, and what evidence should be used to
measure use, the tribunal then needs to look at these data to establish whether the premises
are primarily used as a garage. What does ‘primary’ mean? For the Oxford English Dictionary
it means ‘In the first place, first of all, pre-eminently, chiefly, principally; essentially’ (OED, vol.

X, p.472).

As mentioned above, this interpretation suggests that there must be significantly more
garage use than other use. If there is roughly the same use, for example, as a shop and as a
garage, there is no primary use and therefore no disqualification.

Summary

The Licensing Act 1988 amended the Licensing Act 1964 to include the provision that
premises primarily used as a garage are disqualified for holding a justices’ licence. The
Licensing Act 2003 re-enacts that provision. The retail-trading environment for both local
shops and garages/petrol filling stations has changed dramatically over the last fifteen years.
Courts and committees have recognised this in the way in which they have approached the
task of interpreting the legislation. When the 1988 Act was passed there were some 190
licensed garagef/forecourt shops in England and Wales, today the number approaches 2000.

107



108



Grocery sales at start of business/currently and forecasted

When we took over the existing business in May of 2018 groceries at these premises

were of a low- medium sales.

In the last 6 months grocery sales have grown by over 40% and are continuing to

grow.

Expansion —the grocery sales will continue to grow due to several factors listed

below.

®  Hard work and determination by myself and my staff providing a professional
and rural shop experience.

= |n the very short coming future up to 120 properties are being built close to our
rural garage this will increase the demand for grocery sale exponentially.

®  We are planning in the fore coming future to take over the adjoining business to
increase out shop floor space and specialise in local Herefordshire produce on a
much grander scale than we are excitingly.

109



Basic List Of Groceries
We categorise ourselves as a rural general store because the footfall of traffic is to
purchase groceries medication pet supplies, animal supplies, please find a small basic
list as an example.

Frozen Foods - ready made meals, vegetables, meats, chips and fish.

Shelved Produce - bread, eggs tinned vegetables, fruits, fish, soups, general
toiletries, packet mixes, pastas and sauces, oil and cereals.

Medication - pain killers, dental hygiene, shaving products and general medication.
Fridge — Milk, butter, ham, cheese, bacon, sausages, sandwiches and burgers.

Local Produce Section - Including a wide variety of Herefordshire cakes, cordial,
biscuits, jams, spreads and preserves.

Pets - Sacks and tinned dog food, dog treats, pet essentials, accessories, bird feed,
indoor pet supplies for hamster’s guinea pigs’ and rabbits.

Farm Animal Feed - sheep, horse, donkeys and chickens.

General Store Supplies - Confectionary sweets chocolate crisps and beverages

These lists can continue indefinitely.

You will be able to see some of these items in the photos that were provided at the

beginning.

110



Representation made by the Local Authority 20" December 2018

| am an officer authorised under the Licensing Act 2003.

| refer to the application made for a new premises licence in respect of ‘Forge Filling Station,
Wormbridge, Hereford, HR2 9DH.

The application applies for the sale of alcohol 0800 hours until 2130 hours daily.

The authority does object in total to the grant of the licence for the sale of alcohol.

This objection is based upon the fact that Section 176 of the 2003 Act prohibits the sale from
premises which are used primarily as a garage, or are part of premises used primarily as a
garage. Premises are used primarily as a garage if they are used for one or more of the
following:

the retailing of petrol;

the retailing of derv;

the sale of motor vehicles,

the maintenance of motor vehicles

The applicant has produced data concerning sales between May & October 2018. It is noted
that on 4" July a new till system was installed.

The authority has taken a number of snap shots of that data which has shown the following:

13/07/18 Diesel Sales 46.97% £1637.97
Unleaded petrol 22.02% £ 769.44
Red diesel 6.38% £ 22299
Total 75.37% £2630.40
Total Sales £3494.38
Other sales £ 863.98

25/08/18 Diesel Sales 42.84% £1833.85
Unleaded petrol 26.85% £1148.59
Red diesel 12.14% £519.54
Total 81.83% £3501.98
Total Sales £4280.26
Other sales £ 778.28

01/10/18 Diesel Sales 55.25% £2204.02
Unleaded petrol 20.27% £ 808.54
Red diesel 5.53% £ 220.46
Total 81.05% £3244.02
Total Sales £3989.04
Other sales £ 745.02

111



HEPORTING

Transactions

l Sales Report

Time Intervals
Time Meriod

Time Cr riSONs

- LoGitions
Suze
Misc Products
Promaotions
Brands
Suppliers
Customer Types

ng Categ:

Till Calegories

Multiple Choice "roducts

h Stock

i  customer
ny,* Banking
- Accounting

Auditing

Scheduled Emails

] RETURN

) TILL

ales Report

ase chik

Sales By Product (Daily Sales) we

Custorm

01 Oct 2818 - 01 Oct 2018

fcation

All Lacations

e

All Staff

Search

diesef

Select

ARAND ary MEASURED SALES INT

HaME

DESCRIP AN BARCODE ORDER CODE

2.204.02

Diesel Prise 49

5 £420.46

242448

10 i

the latait r

“ hotes

MET SALES INC

£2,204.02

£220.40

£2424A0

TAX

BEIA (MR us test 1he new U
communityl

KET SALES EXC. TAK

£1,836.70

£209.96

£0.00

™~

£209,9%

£2,040.66

orge filing Malion  *

SFARCH

TOTAL MARGIN %
100.00%

100.00%

112



November October September August July

Goods fuel Goods Fuel Goods Fuel Goods Fuel Goods Fuel
364 82 359 82 360 72 453 97 372 103
388 90 363 57 468 99 461 83 342 64
402 64 373 85 464 102 357 82 322 50
357 70 393 61 367 94 380 81 774 172
314 67 451 93 416 83 386 85 445 92
322 64 352 75 407 83 318 60 457 87
374 74 469 94 375 104 333 109 406 94
390 102 361 96 277 78 411 79 337 74
450 77 395 75 357 109 435 82 358 67
416 82 364 83 352 106 326 77 416 69
326 96 332 70 386 82 473 82 319 74
413 70 304 89 320 94 404 102 410 89
447 88 346 92 356 76 387 74 415 74
357 71 448 85 356 93 356 103 395 78
381 81 306 78 415 94 447 101 314 80
342 65 355 81 381 108 404 95 - 405 92
327 78 334 64 466 97 412 98 445 85
340 76 280 62 452 120 416 97 394 96
346 62 305 78 329 102 393 92 381 85
417 79 390 66 337 89 347 60 414 83
396 74 378 79 322 87 386 66 347 82
305 74 311 69 298 52 407 95 423 95
322 70 383 79 336 83 417 80 388 76
340 92 405 67 384 88 338 88 344 83
293 71 324 58 371 83 324 87 365 98
430 73 384 73 342 77 374 89 452 108
386 84 426 79 336 76 388 65 784 198
801 157 461 83 377 96 326 82 367 93

402 88 412 70 414 90 473 76
341 85 324 71 495 88
333 74
goods fuel goods fuel goods  fuel goods  fuel goods  fuel
10746 2233 11095 2326 11143 2668 12101 2643 12064 2617

goods total fuel total
78361 17357

113



June May

Goods Fuel Goods Fuel
297 85 355 64
389 96 326 76
395 80 375 79
347 86 290 67
438 70 278 59
338 87 381 92
431 97 338 75
452 87 413 82
388 98 301 71
360 81 315 61
299 75 300 53
330 74 409 87
258 82 317 91
387 61 338 89
355 91 414 80
330 89 269 67
305 77 332 92
304 86 377 71
295 83 397 87
411 87 374 101
435 104 336 89
430 88 385 76
284 88 292 77
358 77 347 79
265 67 417 73
268 69 368 77
330 56 330 95
371 61 290 90
361 89 409 77
378 93 292 63

258 66
goods  fuel goods  fuel
10589 2464 10623 2406

114



Gaining Support

We have recently took it upon ourselves to raise a petition of support for us gaining
our licence, we placed this on the shop counter for only 48 hours and only let local
residential customers sign this, the variation was from parish councillors, local
councillors, ex council solicitors and the general farming community who were all
massively in support, as you can see from the amount of signatures raised in a very
short period of time.

Please see attached a copy of this petition of support.

115



Adjoining business and out buildings

The business comprises of our rural shop with an attached tack shop that is included
in our business operations, several smaller outbuildings that hold animal stock, pet
supplies, coal, gas and logs.

We hope the above information will help you in understanding we are more of a

rural shop and multi business than a typical petrol station that you may pass when
driving through the city of Herefordshire.

116



End of Day Report

Till Name: Till1

Opened by: Karl on 2018/07/12 06:25:06.000
Closed by: Karl on 12/07/2018 20:34:05

TENDER INTHE TILL TAKEN VARIANCE
Opening Balance (Float) £100.00 - -£100,00
Withdrawn/ Depasited £0.00 £0.00
Petty Cash £0.00 £0.00
8ub Total - <£100,00
Customer Credit £0.00 £397.41 £0.00
Sub Total - £307.41
Cash £0.00 £1031.08 -£1031.08
Card £0.00 £2246.01 -£2246.01
Cheque £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
BACS £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
8ub Total £0.00 £3277.00 -£3277.08
Total £0.00 £3674.50 -£3377,09
Refunds
QaTy DISC NET TAX TOTAL
NO VAT
1 £0.00 £7.98 £0.00 £7.88
Total:
1 £0.00 £7.80 £0.00 £7.99
Sales By Category
QTy DIsC NET TAX TOTAL Y TOTAL
Food
34 £0.00 £3946 £0.00 £3946 1.07%
Drinks
79 £0.00 £85.06 £14.62 £9867 2.71%
8nacks
124 £0.00 £10266 £17.99 £12064 3.28%
Unleaded Petrol
48 £0.00 £005.565 £199.10 £1184.65 3251%
Dlesel
20 £0.00 £1188.02 £237.62 £1426.64 38.80%
Red Diesel
[} £0.00 £19663 £9.83 £206.46 65.62%
Household
3 £0.00 £767 £1.60 £9.07 0.26%
Meds + Hyg
i £0.00 £224 £046 £2.69 0.07%
Clgarettes
32 £0.00 £248.35 £49.60 £207.95 8.11%
Car Parts
1 £0.00 £683 £1.16 £6.99 0.18%
Coal & Gas
1 £0.00 £38.00 £1.80 £38.80 1.08%
Magazines and Newspapers
68 £0.00 £8036 £0.00 £80.36 2.18%
NO VAT
44 £0.00 £93.23 £000 £83.23 2.64%
20% VAT
11 £0.00 £1598 £322 £18.20 0.52%
Cards e.g Birthday/Greeting
2 £0.00 £298 £0.60 £3.68 0.10%
Sandwiches & Rolls & Pastles Ect
14 £0.00 £36.00 £0.00 £36.00 0.96%
Total:
497 £0.00 £3136.81 £537.59 £3674.50 100.00%
Tax
RATE QTY NET TAX %TOTAL
20VAT
20.00% 307 £2628.82 £625.86 97.82%
§% TAX
6.00% 6 £234.63 £11.73 2.18%
NoTax
0.00% 184 £27349 £0.00 0.00%
Total

£537.59 100.00%

Credit Purchased Breakdown

No credit purchases have been processed

Appendix 7

117

25 N

2d by. Karion

sed by: Karl on 13/07/2018 20:29:48

rENDER

Opening Balance (Float)

Withdrawn/ Deposited
Petty Cash
8ub Total

Customer Credit
Sub Total

Cash
Card

8ub Total
Total
Refunds

QTy
Dlessl
1
Total:
1

IN THE TILL

Sales By Category

£100.00
£0.00
£0.00

wee e

£0.00 £460.80
- £460.80

£0.00 £1025.72
£0.00 £1847.86
£0.00 £60.00
£0.00 £0.00
£0.00 £3033.58

£0,00 £3404.38

2018/07/13 06:30.37.000

TAKEN VARIANCE

-£100.00
£0.00
£0.00

-£100.00

£0.00

-£1026.72
-£1047.86
-£60.00
£0.00
£3033.58

£3133.98

DISC NET TAX TOTAL

£0.00 £45.42 £8.08 £64.50

£0,00 £45.42 £0.08 £54.50

QTyY DisC NET TAX TOTAL
Food

34 £0.00 £4015 £0.00 £40.15
Drinks

a3 £0.00 £10224 £1892 £121.16
snacks

28 £000 £8717 £16.89 £104.08
Unieaded Petrol

33 £000 £52118£12828 £76844
Diesel

48 £0.00 £1364 68 £27301 £1837 97
Red Dissel

8 £0.00 £2923¢ £1060 £22288
Cats

8 £0.00 £1224 £244 £14.68
Household

4 £000 £1073 £243 £1286
Meds + Hyg

2 £0.00 £1.68 £0.31 £1.89
Car Parts

1 £0.00 £166 £0.33 £1.99
Coal & Gas

1 £0.00 £848 £042 £8.90
Magazines and Newspapers

42 £0.00 £74.82 £000 £74862
NO VAT

32 £0.00 £57.19 £0.00 £57.19
20% VAT

11 £0.00 £3047 £6.10 £36.57
sandwiches & Rolls & Pasties Ect

14 £0.00 £3235 £0.00 £3235
Blg Bags Of Dog Foad

i £000 £1188 €000 £1188
Tack Shop Feed

10 £0.60 £8783 £000 £87893
slikCut

i £0.00 £8938 £187 £11.26
Benson & Hedges

2 £000 £13.34 £266 £16.00
Chesterfleld

3 £0.00 £2083 £4.12 £24.75
Soverign

1 £0.00 £6.67 £1.33 £8.00
Jps

3 £000 €2184 £4.36 £26.20
Lambet & Butier

8 £0.00 £6382 £1273 £7655
Cutters Choice

1 £0.00 £11.00 €220 £13.20
Golden Virginia

4 0 £4462 €888 £63.40
Accesorless

7 £0.00 £692 £117 £7.08
Gold Leaf

1 £0.00 £946 £1.89 £11.36
Richmond

1 £0.00 £8.21 £1.64 £9.85
Total:

466 £0.00 £2092.12 £502.26 £3404.38

%TOTAL
1.16%
347%
2.98%

22.02%
46.87%
6.38%
0.42%
0.37%
0.06%
0.06%
025%
2.14%
1.64%
1.06%
0.93%
0.34%
2:52%
0.32%
0.46%
0.71%
0.23%
0.75%
2.18%
0.38%
1.83%
0.20%
0.32%
0.28%

100.00%



End of Day Report

~ame: Till1
pened by: Karl on 24/08/2018 06:13:24
Closed by: Karl on 24/08/2018 20:30:54

TENDER INTHE TILL TAKEN VARIANCE
Qpening Balance (Float) £100.00 - -£100.00
Withdrawn/Deposited £0.00 £0.00
Petty Cash £0.00 £0.00
Cash Tip Outs £0.00 £0.00
8ub Total -£100,00
Customer Credit £0.00 £427.77 £0.00
Sub Total - E427.77
Cash £0.00 £1026.10 -£1026.10

Card £0.00 £1838.08 -£168308.08

Cheque £0.00  £0.00 £0.00

BACS £0.00  £0.00 £0.00

8uh Total £0.00 £2865.19 -£2865.19

Total £0,00 £3202.96 -£2065.19

Refunds

No refunds have been processed

Sales By Category

QTyY DIsc NET TAX TOTAL %TOTAL

Food
41 £0.00 £60.68 £030 £50.89 1.66%
Drinks
89 £0.00 £100.27 £17.71 £117.98 3.68%
8nacks
128 £0.00 £103.08 £1710 £120.16 3.86%
Unleaded Petrol
32 £0.00 £731.93 £148.38 £€878.32 26.67%
Dlesel
1 0,
ame". ot £0.00 £941.00 £188.41 £1130'49nc\j3%?§(€5i-
(B = ST
Dog Food
3 £0.00 £1090 £078 £1168 0.35%
Household
8 £0.00 £1229 £245 £14.74 0.456%
Meds + Hyg
3 £0.00 £481 £097 €578 0.18%
Clgarettes
14 £0.00 £86.84 £17.36 £104.20 3.16%
Coal & Gas
3 £0.00 £38.24 £1.81 £40.15 1.22%
Magazines and Newspapers
31 £0.00 £4669 £000 £46.69 1.42%
NO VAT
46 £0.00 £86.08 £0.00 £85.09 2.68%
20% VAT
1 £0.00 £1.08 £022 £1.30 0.04%
Sandwiches & Rolls & Pastles Ect
17 £0.00 £4166 £0.00 £41.65 1.26%
Blg Bags Of Dag Food
2 £0.00 £2298 £0.00 £22.98 0.70%
Tack Shop Feed
£0.00 f£16.80 £000 £16.90 0.61%
Clgarettes
26 £0.00 £185.37 £37.03 £22240 6.75%
Total:
490 £0.00 £2844.16 £448.80 £3292.96 100.00%
-
Tax le] ECDQ(‘)\
o Fof-al
RATE QTy NET  TAX %TOTAL
20VAT ;
20.00% 308 £2143.59 £428.72 96.63% 2
§% TAX
6.00% 14 £401.71 £20.08 4.47%
NoTax
0.00% 168 £20887 £0.00 0.00%
83
Total ~
£448.80 100.00%
B3
Credit Purchased Breakdown
V1AL
No credit purchases have been processed 1;-1%3

X

(A [

[RIRS

: ]

End of Day Report

ame: Till1

;ned by: Karl on 25/08/2018 06:15:58
ssed by: Karl on 25/08/2018 20:31:15

TENDER IN THE TILL TAKEN VARIAN%% '
" Opening Balance (Float) £100. Og -2128 o
Withdrawn/Deposited £0.0 i
a% o G
Cash Tip Outs 00 canti
gub Total
Customer Credit £0.00 gg:; ;g EO.CE)‘
Sub Total :
£0.00 £1266.41 -£12568.41
Caet £0.00 £2377.48 -£2377.48
o £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
s £0.00  £0.00 £0.00
2Ag§rotal £0.00 £3633.00 -£3633.80
u

Total £0.00 £4276.66 -£3733.00
Refunds
QaTy DISC NET TAX TOTA-

on N
\1Nalkers Cheese & Onl 000 £0.83 E0.47 €100
TO VAt £0.00 £1.35 £0.00 £ 3%
?rab *+Go Bandwich £0.00 £2.26 £0.00 £z =
'al'otal: £0.00 £4.43 £0.17 £

Sales By Category

QTyY DIsC NET  TAX
Food . e
34 €000 £800% ROLL
Drinks o e
74 §000 28287 tis==
gnacks

;adt:;e.e ":: ~.-'-;‘:< —
Eog Food £0.00 £473 £088
Tnusahom €000 £099 £0.20
l;ﬂeds Thve £0.00 £6.06 £1.02
g(l)garenes £0.00 £9343 £18.66
?ar perte £0.00 £666 £1.33
?oa'  gae £0.00 €475 £0.24
T:gazlnes and Ngr)vspa{;;:;r:ﬁ c0.00
gg VAT £0.00 £8245 £0.00
1230% VAT £0.00 £674 €£1.16

gandwiches & Rolls & Pastles Ect
£0.00 £15.28 £0.00

7
s Qf Do Food
Blg B 9 £2298 £0.00

Tack Shop Feed S
g £000  £1325 OW
ngareues e

Customer Crpdit

i
Total
442

Tax

TOTAL

£6.08
£112.08
£7.88
£4.09
£78.16
£82.45
£6.88
£15.2¢

£22.88




\st - \S*
20V%

, (‘)d—ob v

119

1l Name: Till1
Opened by: Karl on 01/10/2018 06:15:17
Closed by: Karl on 01/10/2018 20:30:58

TENDER INTHETILL  TAKEN
Opening Balance (Float) £100.00
Withdrawn/Deposited £0.00 -
Petty Cash £0.00
Cash Tip Outs £0.00 -
Sub Total

Customer Cradit £0.00 £1105.82
8ub Total - £1105.62
Cash £0.00 €006.27
Card £0.00 £1878.15
Cheque £0.00  £0.00
BACS £0.00 £0.00
8ub Total £0.00 £2883.42
Total £0.00 £3080.04
Refunds

No refunds have been processed

Sales By Category

QTty Disc NET  TAX TOTAL
Food

38 £0.00 ¢4784 £0.17 £48.01
Drinks

88 £0.00 £7366 £13.08 £6868.74
8nacks

102 £0.00 £7948 £14.79 £84.27
Unleaded Petral

31 £0.00 £673.79 £134.75 £608.54
Dlesel

49 £0.00 £1838.70 £367.32 £2204 02
Red Dlese|

8 £0.00 £20896 £1050 £22046
Dog Food

6 £0.00 £6.18 £1.24 £7.42
Cats

1 £0.00 £3.13 £0.62 £3.76
Meds + Hyg

1 £0.00 £141 £0.28 £1.69
Cigarettes

13 £0.00 £51.06 £10.19  £61.26
Magazines and Newspapers

28 £0.00 £4671 £0.00 £45.71
NO VAT

37 £0.00 £91566 £0.00 £01.68
20% VAT

13 £0.00 £467 £093 £5.60

Cards e.g Birthday/Greeting

2 £0.00 £2.88 £0.60 £3.59
Sandwiches & Rolls & Pasties Ect

9 £0.00 £18.20 £0.00 £168.20

Blg Bags Of Dog Food

6 £0.00 £55.45 £0.00 £6545
Tack Shop Fesd

1 £000 €760 f0.00 £7.80
Clgarettes

14 £0.00 £111.34 £22.21 £13355
Customer Credit

1 £0.00 £91.73 £0.00 £81.73
Total:

426 £0.00 £3412.36 £576.68 £3989.04
Tax

RATE QTy NET  TAX
20VAT

20.00% 2B7 £2831.17 £566.18

§% TAX

6.00% 5 £20996 £1060
Noh-Tax Items

0.00% 1 £8173 £0.00
NoTax

0.00% 133 £27048 <000
Total

£576.68

Credit Purchased Breakdown

NAME

PDavid Haoia

VARIANCE

-£100.00
£0.00
£0.00
£0.00

£100.00

£0.00

-£806.27
-£1878.16
£0.00
£0.00
£2883.42

£2083.42

%TOTAL
1.20%
217%
2.38%

20.27%
55.26%
5.63%
0.18%
0.08%
0.04%
1.64%
1.16%
2.30%
0.14%
0.08%
0.48%
1.38%
0.18%
3.35%
2.30%

100.00%

%TOTAL
88.18%
1.82%
0.00%
0.00%

100.00%

AMoIINT






AGENDA ITEM 5

‘O Herefordshire

Council
Meeting: Licensing sub-committee
Meeting date: 21 January 2019
Title of report: Application for a new premises licence in

respect of 26 Eign Gate, Hereford. HR4 0AB —
Licensing Act 2003

Report by: Licensing Technical Officer

Classification

Open

Key Decision

This is not an executive decision.

Wards Affected

Hereford

Purpose

To consider an application for a new premises licence in respect of '26 Eign Gate, Hereford.
HR4 0AB

Recommendation

THAT:

The sub committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give
appropriate weight to:

The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,

The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties,
The guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003, and

The Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 - 2020.

Options

1.

There are a number of options open to the sub-committee:

a) Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating
schedule accompanying the application and the mandatory conditions set out in
the Licensing Act 2003,

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

121




b) Grant the licence subject to modified conditions to that of the operating schedule
where the sub-committee considers it appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives and add mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act
2003,

c) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which
the application relates

d) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premise supervisor, or

e) To reject the application.

Reasons for Recommendations
2. Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.
Key Considerations

Licence Application

3. The application for a grant of the premises licence has received relevant
representations and is brought before the sub committee for determination.

4, The details of the application are:
Applicant G&L Retails Ltd, Brook Farm, Marden, Herefordshire. HR1
3ET
Solicitor Not applicable
Type of Date received: 28 Days consultation ended
application:
11 January 2019 7 February 2019
New

Summary of Application

5. The application (appendix 1) requests a new premises licence to allow the following
licensable activities, during the hours shown as follows:

Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption off the premises)
Monday-Sunday10:00-22:00

Summary of Representations

6. Two (2) representations have been received from the responsible authorities (West
Mercia Police and Trading Standards).

7. West Mercia Police have objected (appendix 2) to the licence.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

122



8.

Trading standards have made representations that have been agreed by the
applicant (appendix 3).

Community Impact

9.

Any decision is unlikely to have any impact on the local community.

Equality duty

10.

11.

12.

There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report.

This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and
the residents from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of
this report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood
and/or may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close
proximity to the premises.

Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has
the right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes
business premises). This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol —
Article 1 — also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest
and conditions provided for by law. Members must accordingly make a decision
which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the
rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole.

Financial implications

13.

There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time.

Legal Implications

14.

15.

16.

17.

As relevant representations have been received, the sub committee must determine
the application under Section 3.5.7 (c) of the Herefordshire Council constitution. The
representations must relate to the licensing objectives and the sub committee must
determine the likely effect of the grant of the premises licences on the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing
objectives namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention
of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions
under the Licensing Act 2003. Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance
under Section 182 of the Act and the Council’s own statement of licensing policy. The
options available to the licensing authority are set out in section 1 of this report.

The sub committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have
appeared before the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority.

The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No:
C0O/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative
Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the
Honourable Mrs Justice Black.

In this case it was summed up that: -

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

123



A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State
under section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do
so but will need to give full reasons for their actions.

18. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to
a licence with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’
must be presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions.

19. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of
Bristol Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, C0/6920/2008 High Court of Justice
Queen's Bench Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC
625 (Admin) 2009 WL 648859 in which it was said:

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and
proportionate for the promotion for licensing objectives’.

20. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an
enforceable condition.

21. The committee should also be aware of the stated case of R (on application of Murco
Petroleum Ltd) v Bristol City Council [2010] EWHC 1992 (Admin). In this case it was
summed up that:

Responsible Authorities should be encouraged by this case to ask applicants to
provide further information they believe will help them understand the application
more fully. If that information is not provided by the applicant, Responsible Authorities
can make representations to committees who have the power to require the request
is met.

Mr Justice Cranston said:

The sub-committee [has the power] to ask a question of a party, where the question is
calculated to elicit an answer which will facilitate the function of considering and
adjudicating upon the relevant question

Right of Appeal

22. Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal which states:

Decision to grant premises licence or impose conditions efc.

2 (1) This paragraph applies where a licensing authority grants a premises licence
under section 18.
(2) The holder of the licence may appeal against any decision—
(a) to impose conditions on the licence under subsection (2)(a) or (3)(b)
of that section, or
(b) to take any step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section
(exclusion of licensable activity or refusal to specify person as
premises supervisor).
(3) Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the
application desires to contend—
(a) that the licence ought not to have been granted, or
(b) that, on granting the licence, the licensing authority ought to have
imposed different or additional conditions, or to have taken a step

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

124



mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section,
he may appeal against the decision.
(4) In sub-paragraph (3) “relevant representations” has the meaning given in
section 18(6).

23. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court and must be made within 21 days

beginning with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of
the decision appealed against

Risk Management

24, There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21days of being notified of
the decision in writing.

Consultees

25. All responsible authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Application Form
Appendix 2 — West Mercia Police Objection
Appendix 3 - Trading Standards Representation

Background Papers

None.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer, Tel no. 01432 261761

125






Appendix 1

Herefordshire For help contact
Application for a premises licence licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
Licensing Act 2003 Telephone: 01432 261761

%
* required information

Section 1 of 21
You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

This is the unique reference for this
System reference Not Currently In Use application generated by the system.

You can put what you want here to help you
Your refepence track applications if you make lots of them. It

is passed to the authority.

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
C Yes (¢ No work for.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

Applicant Details

* First name ILaura ]

* Family name IRackauske l

* E-mail

Main telephone number Include country code.

Other telephone number

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:
(¢ Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
(" Applying as an individual Applying as an individual means you are

applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Applicant Business

Is your business registeredin (@ Yes C No Note: completing the Applicant Business
the UK with Companies section is optional in this form.

House?

Registration number 11669423

Business name G&L Retails LTD Irfe)é?slf[rez%s'r?aerﬁe'_s IRgISIETe; LS 18

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

VAT number . none

Legal status Private Limited Company

© Queen’'s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 127



Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business |Shareholder

The country where the headquarters of your

Home country |United Kingdom business is located.
Registered Address Address registered with Companies House.
Building number or name |Brook farm |
Street |Marden |
District l I
City or town |Hereford J
|

County or administrative area |Herefordshire

Postcode |HR1 3ET
Country |United Kingdom |
Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
(¢ Address (" OS map reference (" Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number orname 26 |
Street [Eign gate |
District | |
City or town [Hereford - ]

|

County or administrative area lHerefordshire

Postcode [HR4 0AB

Country [United Kingdom J

Further Details

Non-domestic rateable -
value of premises (£) |1 5,000 |

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

128




Section 3 of 21

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

[ Anindividual or individuals

A limited company / limited liability partnership

[] A partnership (other than limited liability)

[] Anunincorporated association

[] Other (for example a statutory corporation)

[] Arecognised club

[] Acharity

[] The proprietor of an educational establishment

[] Ahealth service body

0 A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act

2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
] Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in

England

[] The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Confirm The Following

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
the use of the premises for licensable activities

[] lam making the application pursuant to a statutory function

] I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 21

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate give any registered number. In the case of a
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of each party concerned.

Non Individual Applicant's Name

Name |G&L Retails Ltd |

Details

Registered number (where

applicable) 11669423 |

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 129




Continued from previous page...

Private Limited Company

Address

Building number or name IBrook farm I

Street |Marden |

District | |

City or town |Hereford |
|

County or administrative area |Herefordshire

Postcode |HR1 3ET

Country |United Kingdom |

Contact Details

E-mail
Telephone number
Other telephone number

* Date of birth

. . s ; ) Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
Nationality |L|thuan|an | work in the UK

| Add another applicant l

Section 5 of 21

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the

premises licence to start? | 01 |/|02 I /l 2019 ‘
dd mm yyyy

If you wish the licence to be

valid only for a limited period, , / ’Z| /

when do you want it to end

Provide a general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for

consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

Ground floor of 26 Eigﬁ Gate will be used as a grocéry shop. Alcohol will be sold in the shop for cbnshmptioh off the
premises.

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 130




Continued from previous page...

If 5,000 or more people are

expected to attend the

premises at any one time, l:]
state the number expected to

attend

Section 6 of 21

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing plays?
C Yes (¢ No

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing films?

 Yes ¢ No

Section 8 of 21

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

C Yes ¢ No

Section 9 of 21

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

 Yes ¢ No

Section 10 of 21

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing live music?

C Yes (¢ No

Section 11 of 21

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing recorded music?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 12 of 21

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 131



Continued from previous page...

Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

" Yes No

D)

Section 14 of 21

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?
C Yes (¢ No

Section 15 of 21

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

(e Yes ' No
Standard Days And Timings

MONGAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for thg days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start |:| End I:} to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start End
Start [ ] End [ ]
WEDNESDAY
Start End
start [ ] End [ ]
THURSDAY
Start End
Start I:] End ’:
FRIDAY
Start End
Start l:, End I:
SATURDAY
Start End
Start I_———| End Ij

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 132




Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY
Start End
start [ ] End
Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:
(" On the premises (¢ Offthe premises (" Both

State any seasonal variations

]

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

No seasonal changes

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the

column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

N/A

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the

licence as premises supervisor
&

Name
First name ¥ lLaura I
Family name lRackauske |
Date of birth ﬁ

dad mm yyyy

133

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Enter the contact's address
Building number or name
Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area
Postcode

Country

Personal Licence number
(if known)

Issuing licensing authority

(if known) Licensing Unit, County Offices, PO box 233,

Bath street, Hereford, HR1 2ZF

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

(" Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

(¢ Asan attachment to this application

Reference number for consent If the consent form is already submitted, ask

form (if known) the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your
reference’.

Section 16 of 21

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

None

Section 17 of 21

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 134



Continued from previous page...

MONDAY

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Start
Start [:
Start
Start ’:I
Start
Start |:|
Start
Start :I
Start
Start [ |
Start
Start ‘———I
Start
st [ ]

State any seasonal variations

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

End
End

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
22:00 (e.g.. 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

22:00

22:00

LRI ALl

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

N/A

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from

those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

N/A

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

135




Continued from previous page...

Section 18 of 21

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

Strong management controls and effective training of staff.
No alcohol sales to underage people.

No drunk or disorderly behavior on premises.

No violent and anti-social behavior.

No any harm to children.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Clear & legible notice indicating the normal hours under the terms of premises licence.
Clear notices warning of potential criminal activity, such as theft will be displayed.
Not selling alcohol to drunk or intoxicated customers.

c) Public safety

Well trained staff adherence to environmental health requirements.
Training and implementation of underage ID checks.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Deliveries of goods necessary for the operation of the business will be carried out at such a time or in such a manner as to
prevent nuisance & disturbance of nearby residents.

e) The protection of children from harm

“Challenge 25" sign witch is a retailing strategy that encourages anyone who is over 18, but looks under 25 to carry
acceptable ID if they wish to buy alcohol.

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 136




Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

o does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
o is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

o An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see

note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

o An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

° A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

o A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

o A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the

holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

o A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.
o A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement

indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

o A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s
parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

o A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

o A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

o A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 137



Continued from previous page...

o A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

° A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

° A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder

with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

o A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A
(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

o Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

o Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

o evidence of the applicant's own identity - such as a passport,
o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member — e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
J evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iif) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an $1, S2 or S3 form,

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:-

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(if) any page containing the holder’s photograph;

(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to

work.
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 138



Continued from previous page...
In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.
Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.
Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.
Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (jii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (i) the school or (jii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (jii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ji) the school proprietor or (jii) the health care provider for the hospital.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 139




Continued from previous page...

e Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

° Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:

0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

0 any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

0 any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

Section 21 of 21

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises.

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.ntm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00

Band C - £33001 to £87000 £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00*

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*

“If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then you are required to pay a higher fee.

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00

Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.

Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.

If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time,
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00
Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount () 190.00

DECLARATION

© Queen's Printer §|1cl Controller of HMSO 2009 140




Continued from previous page...

. l/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.
[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] |

. understand | am not entitled to be issued with a licence if | do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if |
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my
licence will become invalid if | cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).
The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or

* her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and | have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if
appropriate (please see note 15)

X Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name !Laura Rackauske ’
* Capacity ISharehoIder |
* Date los |/ ]o1]/]| 2019 |
dd mm yyyy
[ Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/herefordshire/apply-1 to upload this file and
continue with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

ITIS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

ITIS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 141



OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

ninmEEEEEE

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed ]

1 2 3 4 b 6 1 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 Next>

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 142




Herefordshire
Consent to be designated
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
Telephone: 01432 261761

== —————————————  ____________________— - - — ————— —  ———_ ————
* required information

Section 1 0of 3

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use

Your reference

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

C Yes ¢ No
Applicant Details
First name ILaura
Family name IRackauske

E-mail address

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:
(¢ Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

(" Applying as an individual

Applicant Business

Is your business registeredin (¢ Yes C No
the UK with Companies

House?

Registration number 11669423

Business name G&L Retails LTD

VAT number - none

Legal status Private Limited Company

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Put "no” if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means you are
applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 143



Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business Shareholder

The country where the headquarters of your

Home country |United Kingdom business is located.
Registered Address Address registered with Companies House.
Building number or name |Bfook farm o |
Street |Marden I
District | W |
City or town |Hereford |
|

County or administrative area |Herefordshire

Postcode [HR13ET

Country [Unﬁécﬁjfkingdom - 7|
Section 2 of 3

CONSENT

Name Of Proposed Premises Supervisor

First name |Laura |

Family name IRiackauske 7 I

Address Of Proposed Premises Supervisor
Building number or name
Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country

| hereby confirm that | give my consent to be specified as the designated premises supervisor in relation to the following
application, and any premises licence to be granted or varied in respect of this application concerning the supply of alcohol
at the premises

For instance 'Application for a premises

Type of application Application for a premises licence licence' or Variation of a premises licence'

Is the application or variation that this consent is being submitted in
connection with being supplied electronically to the authority

(¢ Yes C No  Don't know

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 144




Reference number of
electronic application (if
known)
If the application or variation form is already
T submitted, ask its applicant for the form's
'system reference’ or 'your reference'.

Continued from previous page...

Premises Licence Holder

Name ’Laura Rackauske 7

Address Of Premises

Building number or name |26

Street |Eign Gate
District L
City or town |Hereford

County or administrative area |Herefordshire

Postcode HR4 0AB

Premises

Premise licence number l |

Name of premises |Plaza |

| also confirm that | am applying for, intend to apply for or currently hold a personal licence, details of which | set out below

Personal licence issuing
authority name

|Licensing Unit l

Address Of Personal Licence Issuing Authority

Building number or name lCounty Offices, PO box 233

Street IBath street
City or town |Hereford

|
|
District l |
|
|

County or administrative area |Herefordshire

Postcode [HR1 2FZ

Contact Details Of Personal Licence Issuing Authority

Telephone number

Section 3 of 3

DECLARATION

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 145




Continued from previous page...

« lconfirm that I am entitled to work in the United Kingdom and am applying for, intend to apply for or currently hold a
personal licence, details of which | have set out in this form.

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

Full name |Laura Rackauske |
Capacity |Shareho|der |
Date log |/ |o1|/] 2019 |

dd mm yyyy

L Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/herefordshire/change-7 to upload this file and
continue with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

<Previous 1 2 3 Next>

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline

— 1 ]

Error message

Is Digitally signed [l

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

146




) 1.93m  pouble doors 1.6m, Entrance from Eign Gate street 198

1 L

v | |
; i |

Window 2

' . |
- Fire Exit

Fire exit

3.40m

| : o Till

Shelves

I 1.17m Y 3.60m
A

Storage area

4.9m

6kg CO2 Fire

| Extinguisher
A

Fire‘ Exit

Fire exit

e p——

&
& 2.68m
9

S

| o N N & § § ® ¥ ¥ § § § ¥ |
~

: ‘
Layout plan of Plaza shop at: 26 Eign Gate, Hereford, HR4 OAB. Scale 1:100

= ' Licensable area

1- " Raised area, 0.3m above the main shop floor.
- il

' ; 147







Appendix 2

From: Mooney,James

Sent: 22 January 2019 10:02

To: Licensing

Cc: Spriggs, Fred Bowell, Emma, Reynolds,Duncan

Subject: 26 Eign Gate, Hereford - premises licence application

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

West Mercia Police are in receipt of an application for a premises licence for a
premises that will operate as a convenience store at 26 Eign Gate, Hereford. The
application is for the licensable activity of the sale/supply of alcohol.

West Mercia Police object to this application as to grant it will undermine the
licensing objective of the prevention of crime and disorder.

This premises is located is a pedestrianised area which at this time is subject to
significant alcohol related anti social behaviour that is impacting on the public and
businesses that are located in the vicinity.

The applicant has failed to provide information that indicates that they have
assessed the location and the potential impact their application will have on the local
environment. Additionally the applicant has purely submitted a series of broad
headings as their steps to promote the licensing objectives - none of which are
written in a manner that makes them enforceable.

If this matter progresses to a licensing hearing, West Mercia Police will provide
further information in support of their objection.

Regards

Jim Mooney - on behalf of Ps 3456 Reynolds.

Harm Reduction/Community Safety Dept.,

Harm Reduction Coordinator,

Herefordshire Policing Area

West Mercia Police.

DDI 01432 347102

Switchboard '101' x 4702

james.mooney@westmercia.pnn.police.uk

In Herefordshire we protect people from harm

#destinationHereford

www.westmercia.police.uk/maketherightcall

The information contained is shared under the provisions of the Crime and Disorder Act. It is shared
between appropriate agencies for the purpose of reducing and dealing with criminal and anti-social behaviour.

Once in the hands of a new agency it is the responsibility of that agency to protect the information under its own
Data Protection Provisions.

149


mailto:james.mooney@westmercia.pnn.police.uk
http://www.westmercia.police.uk/maketherightcall




Appendix 3

From: Wilson, Leah

Sent: 05 February 2019 12:27

To: 'lrackauske

Cc: Licensing

Subject: Premises License Application - 26 Eign Gate - Hereford - HR4 0AB

Dear Ms Rackauske

As an authorised body under the Licensing Act 2003, Herefordshire Council
Environmental Health and Trading Standards have received details of your
application for a premises licence for 26 Eign Gate - Hereford - HR4 OAB.

Trading Standards have the responsibility for enforcing the Licensing Act 2003 in
respect of sales of alcohol to anyone under the age of eighteen.

After looking at your application under the section protection of children from harm
we would seek to include the following conditions on the premises licence in addition
to those already specified on the application:

1. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol
retailing to the minimum standard of BIIAB level 1 or any equivalent training
course within 1 month of commencing employment at the premises. Where
there are existing staff this training shall be completed within 3 months of the
date that this condition first appears on the licence. No person shall be
authorised to sell or supply alcohol until this training is completed. Refresher
training will be conducted at 12 monthly intervals. Training records shall be
kept on the premises and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading
Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand.

2. A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a description of
the people who have been unable to provide required identification to prove
their age. Such records shall be kept for a period of 12 months. It will be
collected and reviewed on a weekly basis by the Designated Premises
Supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards
Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand.

3. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written
down and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the
Police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act
2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire
Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold)
shall also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least
one location behind any sale area advertising the scheme operated.

If you agree to these conditions could you email me stating you agree and copy the
email to licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk; or

151


mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk

Appendix 3

If you wish to discuss this matter further please do not hesitate to contact me on 01432
260163, lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk

Regards

Trading Standards

HerefOrdshire.gov.uk

Leah Wilson

Trading Standards Officer 8 St Owens Street
Environmental Health and Trading Standards Hereford
Economy, Communities and Corporate HR12PJ

Directorate

Hereford Council

01432 260163
Iwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk
Iwilson@herefordshire.gcsx.gov.uk

O

A

152


mailto:lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:lwilson@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:lwilson@herefordshire.gcsx.gov.uk
https://www.facebook.com/hfdscouncil
https://twitter.com/hfdscouncil

AGENDA ITEM 6

C‘j Herefordshire

Council
Meeting: Licensing sub committee
Meeting date: 7 March 2019
Title of report: Review of a premises licence in respect of:

Mila, 102-104 Belmont Road, Hereford, HR2
7JS called by West Mercia Police - Licensing
Act 2003

Report by: Licensing Technical Officer

Classification
Open

Key Decision

This is not an executive decision.

Wards Affected

Belmont

Purpose

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of: ‘Mila, 102-104
Belmont Road, Hereford, HR2 7JS called by West Mercia Police.

Recommendation
That:

Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate
weight to:

The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,

The Licensing Authority’s application for the review,

The Guidance issued to local authorities under the Licensing Act 2003,

The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties,
and

¢ The Herefordshire Council Licensing Policy.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

153



Options
1. There are a number of options open to the sub-committee in relation to the review:

the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

the exclusion of any licensable activities from the scope of the licence;
the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;
the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and
the revocation of the licence

2. Where the authority takes a step mentioned in bullet point 1 and 2 above it may
provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not
exceeding three months) as it may specify.

Reasons for Recommendations

3. Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

Key Considerations

4, The licensing authority must take into account any relevant representations made.
Relevant representations are those that:

¢ relate to one or more of the licensing objectives;

¢ have not been withdrawn; and

e are made by the premises licence holder, a Responsible Authority or an
interested party

5. The details of the application are:
Applicant Police Sergeant 3456 Duncan Reynolds of West Mercia Police
Agent Not applicable
Type of Date received: 28 Days consultation ended
application:
11 January 2019 8 February 2019
Review

Summary of Application

6. The application for the review is attached (appendix 1).

7. Copies of the application were sent to the premise licence holder and Responsible
Authorities.

8. In brief West Mercia Police’s grounds for the review are:

9. On the 12 December 2018, a joint Police, HM Revenue and Customs and operation

took place at Mila, 102 Belmont Road, Hereford. A quantity of non-duty paid alcohol
was found at the premises.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

154



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Premises History

The premises was first licensed in September 2015 as a Polish convience store
selling alcohol.

On 22 November 2016 a joint operation involving West Mercia Police and
Herefordshire Council Trading Standards was undertaken which resulted in a large
quantity (approx. ¥4 of a million) of illegal and non-duty paid cigerattes being seized
together with a large quantity of tobacco.

Two of the workers at the shop were found to be illegal immigrants and were detained
by UK Immigration.

As a result the police launched an expedited review on 25 November 2016.

The licence was suspended on 29 November 2016 following the expedited review
hearing before the committee.

A full review hearing was held on 15 December 2016 and the committee revoked the
premises licence.

A new appplication was made for a premises licence on 18 February 2017 following
the premises having been sold to Hardi Mohammed

Representations were received from West Mercia Police and Trading Standards.

Although the representations were agreed the matter was bought before the sub-
committee in relation to an issue concerning the lease.

The matter appeared before the sub-committee on 10 April 2017 and the matter was
withdrawn following production of the lease.

As a result the licence was issued.

Since that licence was issued, a number of visits to the premises were carried out
by both the police and the licensing authority. These were carried out during 2017.
On each of the visits the conditions shown attached to the premises licence had not
been complied with.

Due to the constant failures of conditions not being complied with, the Licensing
Authority launched a review of the premise licence on 7 September 2017.

A full review hearing was held on 2 November 2017. The sub-committee removed an
existing condition relating to obstruction of windows and replaced it with a condition
relating to window coverage that was more achievable for promoting the licensing
objective Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

On 25 July 2018 the Licensing Authority received an application to transfer the
premises licence and vary designated premises supervisor (DPS) from Hardi
Mohammed to Anita Szporak.

On 6 August 2018 the Licensing Authority received an objection from West Mercia
Police in relation to the transfer and vary the DPS citing that they had serious
concerns about Ms Szporak being the holder of the premises licence and being
specified as the DPS will undermine the licensing objectives.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

155



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

A hearing was held on 5 September 2018, where the sub committee’s decision was
to refuse the request to transfer the premises licence to Ms Szporak.

Current Licence

The current licence (appendix 2) authorises the following licensable activities during
the hours shown:

Sale/Supply of Alcohol (For consumption Off the Premise)
Monday - Sunday 08:00-24:00

The licence is also subject to a number of conditions.
Circumstances leading to the review

At 1245hrs on Wednesday 12 December 2018 a joint Police and HM Revenue and
Customs operation took place at the premises. This was intelligence led.

The premises was searched and a total of 32 bottles of non-duty paid vodka of
various brands were found on display for sale. The volume of the items amounted to
23 litres and the amount of duty evaded amounted to £307.

As a result this review was launched.

Summary of Representations

No representations have been received from any of the Responsible Authorities or
members of the public, though West Mercia Police have submitted additional
information in support of their application (appendix 3)

No other representations have been received.

Community Impact

33.

Any decision is unlikely to have any significant effect of the local community.

Equality duty

34.

35.

This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and the
residents from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of this
report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood and/or
may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close proximity to the
premises.

Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has
the right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes
business premises). This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol —
Article 1 — also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest
and conditions provided for by law. Members must accordingly make a decision which
is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the rights of
the applicant, residents and the community as a whole.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

156



36.

There are not considered to be any equalities implications arising from this report.

Financial implications

37.

There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time.

Legal Implications

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing
objectives namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention
of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions
under the Licensing Act 2003. Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance
under Section 182 of the Act and the council’s own statement of licensing policy.

The options available to the licensing authority on considering this application under
the Licensing Act 2003 are set out in section 1 of this report.

The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No:
CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative
Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the
Honourable Mrs Justice Black.

In this case it was summed up that: -

A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State
under section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do
so but will need to give full reasons for their actions.

Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to
a licence with a view to promoting the licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ must
be presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions. It should be noted
that hearsay evidence is admissible in the context of making decisions on licensing
matters.

This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of
Bristol Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, C0O/6920/2008 High Court of Justice
Queen's Bench Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC
625 (Admin) 2009 WL 648859 in which it was said:

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and
proportionate for the promotion for licensing objectives’.

In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an
enforceable condition.

Right of Appeal

45.

Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal which states:

An appeal may be made within 21 days to the Magistrates Court by the police or any
person who has made a relevant representation and also by the premises licence
holder once notified of the licensing authority’s decision.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

157



The decision of the licensing authority, following the review hearing, will not have effect
until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until the appeal is disposed of.

Risk Management

46. There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21 days of being notified of
the decision in writing.

Consultees

47. All Responsible Authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire.
Appendices

Appendix 1 - Application for the review of the premises licence

Appendix 2 - Current Premises Licence
Appendix 3 - Additional papers from West Mercia Police

Background Papers

None

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

158



ved W da W,

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all

cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use

additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Police Sergeant 3456 DuncanREYNOLDS

(Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the

review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of t\1o Licensing Act 2003

for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description ALY .

Mila Convenience shop s
102-104 Belmont Road e

Post town Post code (if known)
Hereford HR2 7JS

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
if'the ticousl o :

Hardi MOHAMMED

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known

PRO 1758
|

Part 2 - Applicant details

| am
Please tick yes
1) aninterested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises
) @ s

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

O 0O 0 O

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

159




2) aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (ple'ase complete“(A) ]
below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicablé) *

Please tick
M [0 Mrs [ Miss [] Ms [ ‘Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code,,.... |.

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

160




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

West Mercia Police
Hereford Police Station
Harm Reduction Dept.,
Bath Street,

Hereford. HR1 2HT

Telephone number (if any)
01432 347102

E-mail address (optional)

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

[

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)

On the 12 December 2018, a joint Police, HM Revenue and Customs and UK Border
Agency operation took place at Mila, 102 Belmont Road, Hereford.

A quantity of non-duty paid alcohol was found at the premises.

This matter undermines the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and
disorder. ‘

161




[ Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

Mila is a licensed convenience store at 102-104 Belmont Road, Hereford.
The premises licence is the name of Hardi Mohammed — wﬁé_i_i'_s;'aléd tl_ie hgmed
designated premises supervisor. b, o

At 1245hrs on Wednesday 12 December 2018 joint Police and.HM Revenue and
Customs operation took place at the premises. This was intelligence lead.

The premises was searched and a total of 32 bottles of non-EdL]'t'y haid vodka of
various brands were found on display for sale. The volume of the items amounted to
23 litres and the amount of duty evaded amounted to £307.

All items were seized.
This premises has been subject to previous licensing reviews:: .

24/11/2016 — a Police lead review after large amounts of non-duty paid and
contraband tobacco were found at the premises. This resulted.in the premises
licence being revoked.

02/11/2017 — a Herefordshire Licensing Authority lead reviev;f for breaches of the
premises licence, which resulted in the premises licence being amended.

The sale of illegal or smuggled alcohol is viewed as serious a , per the guidance

issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. duty

Qi b

The view of West Mercia Police is that due to the seriousness of this latest
matter the premises licence for Mila Convenience shop should be revoked.

e e

162




Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before ]

If yes please state the date of that application
Day Month Year

e a1 12Jo[16]

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
what they were and when you made them

24/11/2016 — Police lead licensing review with regards to the sale/supply of
contraband and smuggled tobacco. Review granted.

02/11/2017 — in support of Herefordshire Council lead review concerning
breaches of the premises licence. Review granted.

25/07/2018 — application to transfer the premises licence — Police objection
submitted, application refused y M:o '

163




Please tick yes
* | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the respensible O
authgEtss-and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate
* | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements X
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent

Date 10 January 2019

Capacity  Applicant

...............................................................................................................

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for ;
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of thelicensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates. of problems
which are included in the grounds for review if available.

3. The application form must be signed.

4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on thelr behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so. /

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

164



(!':) Herefordshire
Council
LICENSING ACT 2003
Part A - Premises Licence

Premises licence number - PR01758 (App to Review Premise Licence)

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Mila

102-104 Belmont Road
Hereford
Herefordshire

HR2 7JS

Telephone number: 07779 351620

Where the licence is time limited the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
SALE OF ALCOHOL (for consumption off the premises)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Supply/Sale of Alcohol

Monday - Sunday 08:00-24:00

The opening hours of the premises

Monday - Sunday 08:00-24:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies

For consumption off the premises

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ

165



L. Herefordshire
O Council

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Hardi Mohammed
5 Heronville Drive
West Bromwich
B70 OHS

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Registered Number: Not applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Hardi Mohammed
5 Heronville Drive
West Bromwich
B70 OHS

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence Number — ‘
Issuing Authority —

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol

Age verification

(1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of

alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that

the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification

policy.

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ

166



L. Herefordshire
O Council

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and

either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.
Below Cost Price

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol
No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-
(a) at atime when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

Licensing conditions

General

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of
EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition.

Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and
all areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs.

Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date stamped ,
recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 31 days
and handed to Police on demand.

The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is
capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in recordable media format, an authorised
Herefordshire Trading Standards Officer or the Local Authority on demand. The Recording
equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the DPS or
other responsible named individual. An operational daily log report must be maintained endorsed
by signature, indicating the system has been checked and is compliant, in the event of any
failings actions taken are to be recorded.

In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST
report the failure to the Police on contact number ‘101’ immediately

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ

167



L. Herefordshire
O Council

An incident log must be kept at the premises. Incident log records will be retained for a period of
12 months from the date it occurred. It will made immediately available on request to an
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), an authorised
Herefordshire Trading Standards Officer or the Police, which must record the following:
(a) all crimes reported to the venue (where relevant to the licensing objectives)

(b) all ejections of patrons

(c) any complaints received (where relevant to the licensing objectives)

(d) any incidents of disorder

(e) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment

(f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol

(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol retailing to the
minimum standard of BIIAB level 1 or any equivalent training course within 1 month of
commencing employment at the premises. Where there are existing staff this training shall be
completed within 3 months of the date that this condition first appears on the licence. Refresher
training will be conducted at 6 monthly intervals. Training records shall be kept on the premises
and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing
Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand.

Personal Licence Holder to be on the premises at all times.

Public Safety

Prevention of Public Nuisance

Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall be
displayed at all exits to the premises requesting the public to respect the needs of
local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly.

Protection of Children from Harm

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and kept at
the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the Police or an ‘authorised person’ (as
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of
Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall
also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any
sale area advertising the scheme operated.

A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who
have been unable to provide required identification to prove their age. Such records shall be kept
for a period of 12 months. It will be collected and reviewed on a daily basis by the Designated
Premises Supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section
13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire
Council on demand.

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ

168



L. Herefordshire
O Council

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
Hearing date: Thursday 2" November 2017

No later than 14 days from the date that this condition first appears on the licence, the premises
licence holder will ensure that there is an unobstructed view at all times into the licensable area of
the premises. Provided that in respect of the street facing windows any obstruction will be
restricted to the top 25% of the window and the bottom 25% of the window in each case. (Window
refers to the whole of the area covered by glass) This will mean at least 50% of all windows and
100% of all doors looking into the premises from Belmont Road are clear of obstruction. No
obstruction includes any permanent or temporary signage placed on glass surfaces of windows
and doors, as well as any other item within the shop which obstructs the view through the
window.

The committee also agreed that condition 5 (immigration) could be removed as the condition was
obsolete

Annex 4 - Plans
As attached — dated 17.02.2017

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ

169



L. Herefordshire
O Council

LICENSING ACT 2003
Part B - Premises licence summary

Premises licence number - PR01758 (App to Review Premise Licence)
Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Mila

102-104 Belmont Road
Hereford
Herefordshire

HR2 7JS

Telephone number: 07779 351620

Where the licence is time limited the dates:

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
SALE OF ALCOHOL (for consumption off the premises)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Supply/Sale of Alcohol

Monday - Sunday 08:00-24:00

The opening hours of the premises

Monday - Sunday 08:00-24:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies

For consumption off the premises

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ

170



L. Herefordshire
O Council

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Hardi Mohammed
5 Heronville Drive
West Bromwich
B70 OHS

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Registered Number: Not applicable

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of
alcohol

Hardi Mohammed

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
8 St Owen Street, Hereford. HR1 2PJ

171






MG11

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9; Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, s.5B)

Page 1 of 2

URN: |

Statement of: James Michael PHILLIPS

Age if under 18: Over 18 Occupation: PC

This statement (consisting of 2 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have
wilfully stated anything in it, which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: Date: 15/02/2019

| am PC 3590 James Michael PHILLIPS of West Mercia Police, currently based at
South Wye Police Station as part of a safer neighbourhood team. As part of our
duties we on occasion visit licenced premises on our area and we record those visits
onto the Inn Keeper system. This system collates the information for our harm hub
who work with our partner agencies. | have been asked to put into a statement my
two most recent visits to the MILA CONVENIENCE STORE on BELMONT ROAD in
HEREFORD. | have looked at Inn Keeper and copied those reports into this
statement. The first report below with the prefix 1 was in relation to a visit that | did on
the 20™ of October 2018 at 15:10hrs. | spoke with Hersh MOHAMMED, at
the store. The second report prefix 2 was in relation to a visit that | did on the the 6"
of February 2019 at 15:15hrs. On that occasion | spoke with Anita SZPORAK
F who provided the details for the report describing Hersh MOHAMMED as
e new owner of the store.

1) SHOP VISITED. PERSON ON PREMISES HERSH MOHAMMAD
. HE SHOWED ME HIS PERSONAL LICENCE ISSUED
BY BLACKBURN COUNCIL. THE ADDRESS ON THE LICENCE WAS
HE STATED THAT HE
WAS LOOKING AT BUYING THE SHOP DESCRIBED HIMSELF AS THE
CURRENT MANAGER. HE STATED THAT HE PICKS UP THE RUBBISH IN
THE ALLEYWAY ONCE A MONTH OR SO AND THAT HE WILL TELL
CUSTOMERS TO KEEP THE ALLEYWAY CLEAR OF RUBBISH

2)PREMISES VISITED AT THE REQUEST OF LICENCING FOLLOWING THE
OWNER NOTIFYING THAT HE WAS SURRENDERING HIS LICENCE. THE SHOP
WAS STAFFED BY ANITA SZPORAK, NO OTHER STAFF PRESENT. SHE

Signature: Signature witnessed by:

Date/Time Started: 15/02/2019 14:57:53
Date/Time Finished: 15/02/2019 15:23:30

Format/Status: Digital Master - A78B3AE2C11A2531B3EA7825FC37771B418AF7984614ECAE2D9AC12ACD5ES0AS

2013 Phillips,James/02/19

173




MG11

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Page 2 of 2

Statement of: James Michael PHILLIPS URN: ‘

WAS AWARE THAT THE SHOP WAS CHANGING HANDS. SHE WAS INFORMED
THAT THAT THE LICENCE HAD BEEN SURRENDERED AND THAT THE SALE OF
ALCOHOL SHOULD STOP WITH IMMEDIATE EFFECT. SHE REMOVED THE
RELATIVELY SMALL AMOUNT OF ALCOHOL ON THE DISPLAY AND WAS TOLD
THAT ALL ALCOHOL SHOULD BE REMOVED FROM DISPLAYS AND NOT SOLD.
THE NEW OWNER IS HERSH OMAR MOHAMMAD,

Signature: Signature witnessed by:

2010/11 Phillips,James/02/19

174




AGENDA ITEM 7

C':) Herefordshire

Council
Meeting: Licensing sub committee
Meeting date: 7 March 2019
Title of report: Review of a premises licence in respect of:

‘S&S News, 55 Broad Street, Hereford. HR4
9AB called by West Mercia Police -
Licensing Act 2003

Report by: Licensing Technical Officer

Classification

Open

Key Decision

This is not an executive decision.

Wards Affected

Hereford - Central

Purpose

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of S&S News, 55
Broad Street, Hereford. HR4 9AB called by West Mercia Police.

Recommendation

That:

Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate
weight to:

The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives,

The Licensing Authority’s application for the review,

The Guidance issued to local authorities under the Licensing Act 2003,

The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties,
and

The Herefordshire Council Licensing Policy.

Options

1.

There are a number of option open to the sub-committee in relation to the review:

e the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;
e the exclusion of any licensable activities from the scope of the licence;

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

175



¢ the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;
o the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and
e the revocation of the licence

2. Where the authority takes a step mentioned in bullet point 1 and 2 above it may
provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not
exceeding three months) as it may specify.

Reasons for Recommendations

3. Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

Key Considerations

4. The licensing authority must take into account any relevant representations made.
Relevant representations are those that:

¢ relate to one or more of the licensing objectives;

¢ have not been withdrawn; and

e are made by the premises licence holder, a Responsible Authority or an
interested party

5. The details of the application are:
Applicant Police Sergeant 3456 Duncan Reynolds of West Mercia Police
Agent Not applicable
Type of Date received: 28 Days consultation ended
application:
17 January 2019 14 February 2019
Review

Summary of Application

6. The application for the review is attached (appendix 1)

7. Copies of the application were sent to the premise licence holder and Responsible
Authorities.

8. In brief West Mercia Police’s grounds for the review are:

“Hereford Police are currently tackling alcohol related anti-social behaviour in the
general area of Broad Street and Eign Gate, Hereford. As part of this process the
police have and are engaging with licensed retail premises in the area to get their
co-operation with regards to serving those involved in the issues being addressed.
This process includes verbally engaging with the owner and staff at S&S News
(licensed in the name of 55 Broad Street, Hereford) and sending letters asking for
their support.

However despite these visits and interventions, it is the view of West Mercia Police
that that these premises continue to sell alcohol to individuals who are involved in
alcohol related anti-social behaviour.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

176



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

This premises is therefore undermining the licensing objective of the prevention of
crime and disorder.”

Premises History

The premises was first licensed in November 2013 as a newsagents selling alcohol.

On 19 November 2018 an application was received to transfer the premise licence
and vary the designated premises supervisor (DPS) from Ramesh Sharma to Mr
Mohammed Asher Rashid. These applications were incorrect and were accepted on
7 December 2018.

The licence was issued on 21 December 2018.

A transfer consent form was received from Mr Rashid on 1 February 2019
consenting to transfer the premise licence to Irfan Sagar, we have not receive the
transfer application or £23 fee.

Current Licence

The current licence (appendix 2) authorises the following licensable activities during
the hours shown:

Supply/Sale of Alcohol (for consumption off the premises)
Monday — Saturday 06:00 — 22:00
Sunday — 09:00 — 22:00

The licence is also subject to a number of conditions.
Circumstances leading to the review

For a number of months, the general area of Eign Gate and its surrounding streets
have been subject to an on-going policing operation to tackle alcohol related anti-
social behaviour. The vast majority of those involved are known individuals who have
drug, alcohol and mental health issues. They gather most days from about 1000hrs
up to 1800hrs, are known to drink alcohol purchased from local shops and as the day
goes on, become involved in ‘disorderly behaviour, which has resulted in arrests, use
of Police dispersal powers and other interventions. As part of a process of tackling
the supply of alcohol the Police have engaged with local licensed shops to get their
co-operation NOT to serve these individuals due to the resulting problems, Visits and
letters were delivered to the shop on 30 August 2018 and a further reminder on 30
October 2018. The reminder was sent due to the ongoing problems in the area that
could be tracked back to the shop. Further visits to the premises were undertaken on
the following dates 15t November 2018, 4" December 2018, 51" December 2018, 20t
December 2018, and 15th January 2019. Following the several visits, West Mercia
Police’s view is that Mr Rashid is failing to promote the licensing objective of the
prevention of crime and disorder and failing to uphold the conditions contained in the
premises licence.

As a result this review was launched.

Summary of Representations

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

177



17.

No representations have been received from any of the Responsible Authorities or
members of the public.

Community Impact

18.

Any decision is unlikely to have any significant effect of the local community.

Equality duty

19.

20.

21.

This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and the
residents from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of this
report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood and/or
may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close proximity to the
premises.

Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has
the right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes
business premises). This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol —
Article 1 — also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest
and conditions provided for by law. Members must accordingly make a decision which
is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the rights of
the applicant, residents and the community as a whole.

There are not considered to be any equalities implications arising from this report.

Financial implications

22.

There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time.

Legal Implications

23.

24.

25.

26.

The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing
objectives namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention
of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions
under the Licensing Act 2003. Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance
under Section 182 of the Act and the council’'s own statement of licensing policy.

The options available to the licensing authority on considering this application under
the Licensing Act 2003 are set out in section 1 of this report.

The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No:
C0O/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative
Court on 6 May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the
Honourable Mrs Justice Black.

In this case it was summed up that: -

A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State
under section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do
so but will need to give full reasons for their actions.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

178



27. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to
a licence with a view to promoting the licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ must
be presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions. It should be noted
that hearsay evidence is admissible in the context of making decisions on licensing
matters.

28. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of
Bristol Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, C0O/6920/2008 High Court of Justice
Queen's Bench Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC
625 (Admin) 2009 WL 648859 in which it was said:

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and
proportionate for the promotion for licensing objectives’.

29. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an
enforceable condition.

Right of Appeal
30. Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal which states:

An appeal may be made within 21 days to the Magistrates Court by the police or any
person who has made a relevant representation and also by the premises licence
holder once notified of the licensing authority’s decision.

The decision of the licensing authority, following the review hearing, will not have effect
until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until the appeal is disposed of.

Risk Management

31. There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a
right of appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21 days of being notified of
the decision in writing.

Consultees

32. All Responsible Authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Application for the review of the premises licence
Appendix 2 - Current Premises Licence

Background Papers

None

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Emma Bowell — Licensing Technical Officer 01432 261761

179






Appendix 1

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all

cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I _Police Sergeant 3456 Duncan REYNOLDS

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the
review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003
for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description Yoy

55 Broad Street

Post town Post code (if known)
Hereford HR4 9AB

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if

Mohammed Asher RASHID

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate ( if known

PRO1612

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
.iow... Please tick yes
1) aninterested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises g L]
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of fhe:ﬁremi;es ]
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premisés ]
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the ]

premises

181




2) aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

3) amember of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) []
below) .

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick Ce)
M [ Mrs [ Miss [ Ms [] ‘Other fitle
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code.. ..

€ oy

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

West Mercia Police
Hereford Police Station
Harm Reduction Dept.,
Bath Street,

Hereford. HR1 2HT

Telephone number (if any)
01432 347102

E-mail address (optional)

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety ]
3) the prevention of public nuisance ]
4) the protection of children from harm O

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)

Hereford Police are currently tackling alcohol related anti social behaviour in the
general area of Broad Street and Eign Gate, Hereford.

As part of this process the Police have and are engaging with licensed retail
premises in the area to get their co operation with regards to serving those involved
in the issues being addressed.

This process includes verbally engaging with the owner ana s‘taff ét S&S News
(licensed in the name of 55 Broad Street, Hereford) and sending Ietters asking for
their support.

However despite these visits and interventions, it is the view of West Mercia Police
that that this premises continues to sell alcohol to individuals who are involved in
alcohol related anti social behaviour.

This premises is therefore undermining the licensing objective of the prevention of
crime and disorder.
acial bk

TS

183




Please provide as much information as possible to supp'o"l‘ti'thé-application
(please read guidance note 2) o

S&S News also known as A&M News is located in the city cénitre of Hereford, very
close to the pedestrian areas of High Town and Eign Gate and within sight of the
iconic Hereford Cathedral. '

It is a small — but busy - licensed convenience store, licensed to sell alcohol for long
periods of the day.

For a number of months, the general area of Eign Gate and its surrounding streets
have been subject to an on-going policing operation to tackle alcohol related anti
social behaviour. The vast majority of those involved are known individuals who
have drug, alcohol and mental health issues. Many are homeless. It has become
common practise for the group to gather at the area directly outside All Saints Church
at Eign Gate — at a raised seating area commonly known as ‘the plinth’. They gather
most days from about 1000hrs up to 1800hrs, are known to drink alcohol purchased
from local shops and as the day goes on, become involved in disorderly behaviour,
which has resulted in arrests, use of Police dispersal powers and other interventions.

As part of a process of tackling the supply of alcohol the Police have engaged with
local licensed shops to get their co operation NOT to serve theése individuals due to
the resulting problems. This has involved personal visits to the shops, talking to staff
and putting in writing to the premises licence holder the issues of concerns and
asking for their support to tackle the problems. ¢

Visits and letters were delivered to the shop on 30 August 2018 and a further
reminder on 30 October 2018. TR

The reminder was sent due to the on going problems in the area that could:be
tracked back to the shop. -

At no time was the then premises licence holder was spoken to:as he was never

found at the premises and no contact numbers could be provided by staff working.
PORS wE L Wy :

No contact was made by the premises licence holder regarding:the: contents ‘of the

letters.

MR

Further visits to the premises were undertaken on the following:dates:

01/11/2018 — visit to speak to the premises licence holder. The: staff provided a
name of a male who they said owned the business. This was not the named
premises licence holder. Requests were made to view the refusals register and to
see staff training records. The staff member admitted he had hever been trained and
the documents did not exist.

As a consequence of this visit it was suspected that the named-premises licence
holder was no longer involved in the business. As this was person was also the
designated premises supervisor (DPS), it would mean no DPS was in place and
therefore alcohol sales could not be made. This informationiwas shared with the
Licensing Authority who undertook to write to the premises licence holder. "

No action was taken regarding the lack of a DPS, so on 04 ‘December2018 a S19
notice was served on the premises directing them not to sell alcohol until the matter
was addressed. g -

PYBY_ Y A s
R B L

184 &1




The issue of no DPS was addressed on the same day and the.premises licence was
transferred into the name of the current premises licence holder Mohammed
RASHID. ;

1.7 e SRR N SRR iy
The Police further visited the premises on 05 December 2018 and spoke to Mr
RASHID who voiced his support to co operate with the Police to.tackle the issues
occurring near to his premises. He was made fully aware of the:issues. and-the fact
that the alcohol being consumed by the troublemakers could be;tracked back to his
premises. He gave his assurance that his staff would no longer sell to these
individuals — who are quite distinctive in appearance with visibledisabilities .such as
missing limbs. baloohor  nt e

The issues in the area persisted with the Police attending the location on a regular
basis to address alcohol related anti social behaviour. Statements were taken from
numerous businesses in the area who identified S&S News as the main premises
selling alcohol to this group and also how their behaviour was have a direct negative
impact on their business and causing alarm, distress and harassment to staff and
members of the public who used the location. e

Whilst there is some success in tackling the issues that are occurring, the main
concern was the supply of alcohol that could be linked to S&S. News.

&%+ b ¢ By
On the 20 December 2018, a Police Officer visited the premises.to obtain CCTV with
regards to a crime that occurred at the shop. Staff on duty were unable to:operate the
system — this is a breach of the premises licence. A telephone:conversation took
place with Mr RASHID who ‘talked the officer’ to use the system: It was found that
the time and date were out of sync to the system. Evidence was.found and:the.
owner undertook to download the data and forward it to the officer. This never
happened.

The breach of the CCTV licence condition has been shared w1th the Licensing
Authority. :

Whilst watching the CCTV, the officer did see a known individual involved in the anti
social behaviour enter and make a purchase of alcohol. This occurred on at least 3
separate occasions on the same day. When asked why the shop assistant had not
challenged this person, the response was simply ‘l don’t know:him’. -
Mandedhir - A1 :
On 15 January 2019 a visit was made to the premises to speak to Mr RASHID.
Whilst waiting to speak to the member of staff working a male.made a purchase of a
single can of alcohol. This customer left the shop, crossed:thesroad and-handed it to
known troublemaker. This exchange happened within clear vision line.of the shop.
SAENTY. dehe 8
The staff member was challenged but could not come with aireasonable excuse why
he did not ask relevant questions based on the concerns that'had been raised by the
Police over the last 4 months. The member of staff said that he was always refusing
sales. The refusals register was requested and produced. The only recorded
matters were in November 2018 — nothing before or afterwards — and did not support
his position.

Clearly this a problem premises through them supplying alcohol-to known
troublemakers who are causing issues with their sight. The premises is breaching
the premises licence and despite reassurances by Mr RASHID.is not co operating
and supporting the Police in tackling the problems that are a.great concern to the
local community. PN

Wrgath o L

6 ik - fad - -

1
R RETo i € oo DA LTS § 1

5 O NREG  T e .

185 ool
4 i .

T L i
AT




g ER R L

F A Y

This shop openly sells single cans of what is known as super strength‘ alcohol - that
is over 6.5av. Additionally the shop sells large 3litre bottles of cider, "beer and cider.
These are drinks of choice for some individuals with alcohol relafed issues,

The view is that Mr RASHID is failing to promote the licensing, objective of the
prevention of crime and disorder and failing to uphold the condltlons contained in the
premises licence. o

e
- ML

The view of West Mercia Police is that due to the serlousness of this matter the
premises licence for S&S News should be revoked. :

186




Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before |

If yes please state the date of that application
L o Day Month Year

LLTTTTTT]

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
what they were and when you made them

L Precis

187




Please tick yes
* | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible L]
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate
* | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements ]
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or aSpIicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional) I

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of thelicensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems
which are included in the grounds for review if available.

3. The application form must be signed.

4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

188



Appendix 2

Herefordshire
Council

LICENSING ACT 2003
Part A - Premises Licence
Premises licence number - PR01612 (Grant of Premises Licence)

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

55 Broad Street
Hereford
Herefordshire
HR4 9AB

Telephone number: 01432 351394

Where the licence is time limited the dates:
Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
SALE/SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Supply/Sale of Alcohol

Monday — Saturday 06:00 — 22:00
Sunday - 09:00 — 22:00

The opening hours of the premises

Monday — Saturday 06:00 — 22:00
Sunday - 07:00 — 22:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies

For consumption off the premises

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
PO Box 233, Blue School House, Hereford, HR1 2ZB

189




Herefordshire
Council

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Mohammed Asher Rashid
10 Brynhyfryd Road
Newport

NP20 4FX

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Registered Number: None

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Mohammed Asher Rashid
10 Brynhyfryd Road
Newport

NP20 4FX

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence Number —-

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
Mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-
(a) atatime when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence

Age verification
. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a
holographic mark.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule
Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
PO Box 233, Blue School House, Hereford, HR1 2ZB

190



Herefordshire
Council

Licensing conditions

General

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of
EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition.

Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and
all areas where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs.

Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order , be correctly time and date stamped ,
recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 31 days
and handed to Police on demand.

The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is
capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage into DVD for the Police/Local Authority on
demand.

The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure environment under the
control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. An operational daily log report must be
maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the system has been checked and is compliant, in
the event of any failings actions taken are to be recorded.

In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS MUST
report the failure to the Police on contact number 101" immediately

An incident log must be kept at the premises (it will be retained for a period of twelve months),
and made immediately available on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13
of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police, which must record the following:

all crimes reported to the venue

any complaints received

any incidents of disorder

any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
any failure of the CCTV system.

Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

hoo0Tp®

All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in Responsible alcohol retailing to the
minimum standard of BIIAB level 1 or any other training recognised and agreed with
Herefordshire Council Trading Standards within one month of the date that this condition appears
on this licence. (Where there are exisiting staff this training shall be completed within 3 months of
the date that this conditon first appears on the licence). Retraining every 6 months. Training
records shall be kept on the premises and shall be produced to the police or an ‘authorised
person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards
Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand.

All existing shall be trained within 3 month of the date this condition appears on this licence. All
new staff shall be trained within one month of taking up employed. All staff shall be re-trained 12
monthly thereafter. The training shall include:

. Drugs Awareness
o Conflict resolution
. Selling to under age person

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
PO Box 233, Blue School House, Hereford, HR1 2ZB

191



Herefordshire
Council

. Selling to drunks

Training records shall be kept on the premises which shall show the area of training covered, the
date of the training, the name of the person and shall be signed by the trainer and trainee. This
shall be produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the
Licensing Act 2003) on demand.

The premise licence holder, the DPS and staff employed at the premises will co-operate fully with
the Police and other enforcement agencies.

The premises shall be supervised by such person or persons as the DPS considers appropriate.
Such person carrying out the supervisory role shall be authorised in writing to perform that role.
The written authorisation shall be kept at the premises and made immediately available on
request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the
Police. A copy of the licence including conditions shall be kept at the premises, available to staff
at all times and ensure compliance with the terms of the licence.

Public Safety

Prevention of Public Nuisance

The DPS and all other staff shall ensure that alcohol is not consumed on the premises or
immediately upon leaving the premises and are taken off the premises by customers

The premises licence holder shall meet at reasonable times with any aggrieved party to address
issues of disorder, nuisance and annoyance. A record of such meeting shall be recorded and
shall be produced on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing
Act 2003) or the Police

Protection of Children

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and kept at
the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised person’ (as defined by
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the police or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of
Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall
also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any
till area advertising the scheme operated.

Either a written register of refusals detailing a description of the people who have been unable to
provide required Identification to prove their age or an electronic register, detailing the age,
challenges made regardless of ID being produced. Such records shall be kept for a period of 12
months and will be collected on a daily basis by the Designated Premises Supervisor and
produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act
2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
Not applicable

Annex 4 - Plans
As attached

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
PO Box 233, Blue School House, Hereford, HR1 2ZB

192



Herefordshire
Council

LICENSING ACT 2003
Part B - Premises licence summary

Premises licence number - PR01612 (Grant of Premises Licence)

Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

55 Broad Street
Hereford
Herefordshire
HR4 9AB

Telephone number: 01432 351394

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Supply/Sale of Alcohol

Monday — Saturday 06:00 — 22:00
Sunday - 09:00 - 22:00

The opening hours of the premises

Monday — Saturday 06:00 — 22:00
Sunday - 07:00 — 22:00

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence

Mohammed Asher Rashid
10 Brynhyfryd Road
Newport

NP20 4FX

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

For consumption off the premises

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Registered Number: None

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
PO Box 233, Blue School House, Hereford, HR1 2ZB

193




Herefordshire
Council

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of
alcohol

Mohammed Asher Rashid

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy

Licensing Section, Herefordshire Council
PO Box 233, Blue School House, Hereford, HR1 2ZB

194




	Agenda
	 
	Licensing Hearing Flowchart

	4 Application for a new premises licence in respect of 'Forge Filling Station, Wormbridge, Hereford. HR2 9DH' - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 - application
	Appendix 2 - local authority representation
	Representation made by the Local Authority 20th December 2018
	I am an officer authorised under the Licensing Act 2003.
	Fred Spriggs Licensing Officer

	Appendix 3 - Environmental Health representation
	Appendix 4 - May-Nov Sale of Goods vs Fuel
	Appendix 5 - Petition of Support
	Appendix 6 - Information from applicant
	Evidence 1
	Evidence 2
	Evidence 3
	Evidence 4
	Evidence 5

	Appendix 7 - Information from the licensing authority

	5 Application for a new premises licence in respect of 26 Eign Gate, Hereford. HR4 0AB - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 - Application Form
	App & Consent.pdf
	Plans

	Appendix 2 - West Mercia Police Objection
	Appendix 3 - Trading Standards Representation

	6 Review of a premises licence in respect of: Mila, 102-104 Belmont Road, Hereford, HR2 7JS called by West Mercia Police - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 - Application for the review of the premises licence
	Appendix 2 - Current Premises Licence
	Appendix 3 - Additional papers from West Mercia Police

	7 Review of a premises licence in respect of: S&S News, 55 Broad Street, Hereford. HR4 9AB called by West Mercia Police  - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 - Application for the review of the premises licence
	Appendix 2 - Current Premises Licence




